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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Good morning.  I

          3  am Council Member Yvette Clarke, Chair of the

          4  Committee on Fire and Criminal Justice Services.

          5  And today, we will be hearing three pieces of

          6  legislation.

          7                 The first being Reso. No. 132, which

          8  is a resolution calling upon the appropriate

          9  Committee of the Council of the City of New York to

         10  conduct an investigation into the billing practices

         11  of the New York City Fire Department.

         12                 The second is Intro. No. 110, which

         13  is a local law to amend the Charter of the City of

         14  New York in relation to the provision of ambulance

         15  service.

         16                 And the third is Intro. No. 187,

         17  which is a local law to amend the Administrative

         18  Code of the City of New York in relation to

         19  requiring the New York City Fire Department to

         20  submit to the City Council an operational time

         21  analysis report summarizing departmental

         22  performance, with respect to calls for emergency

         23  assistance.

         24                 With me today, seated to my left, is

         25  Council Member Tracy Boyland of Brooklyn.  Also,
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          2  seated to my left, is our Counsel, Ted Becker, that

          3  is right, Ted Becker.  Seated to my right is Tara

          4  Martin our Legislative Director; and to our far

          5  right is our, literally and figuratively, is our

          6  Minority Leader, Mr. James Oddo of Staten Island.

          7                 We would like to get right into the

          8  issues today. There are a number of resolutions, and

          9  I am sure we are going to be hearing a lot of very

         10  interesting testimony with respect to them. So, I

         11  would like to call at this time our Assistant Chief

         12  of EMS Operations with the New York City Fire

         13  Department, Chief Jerry Gombo.  If you would just

         14  identify yourself again, for the record and the

         15  individuals seated with you?

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Good morning.

         17    My name is Jerry Gombo, and I am the Assistant

         18  Chief of EMS for the New York City Fire Department.

         19  To my left is Commissioner Rush, and to my right is

         20  Commissioner Clare.

         21                 Good morning, once again, Chairperson

         22  Clarke and Committee members.  My name is Jerry

         23  Gombo, and I am the Assistant Chief of EMS

         24  Operations at the New York City Fire Department.

         25  Unfortunately, Chief MaCraken (phonetic), is not
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          2  able to be here, he had an accident at home.  Thank

          3  you for the opportunity to testify today on the two

          4  legislative proposals the Committee is considering.

          5                 Let me preface my testimony by

          6  stating that the Fire Department recognizes the

          7  critical importance of government entities working

          8  together, particularly after the September 11th to

          9  ensure that we are able to protect New York City.

         10  The proposals we are discussing today, appear to be

         11  attempts to assist this process. However, I will

         12  outline why the Department believes the proposals

         13  are not productive steps for the City to take at

         14  this time.

         15                 I will begin with Intro. No. 110, the

         16  proposed local law amendment that would grant the

         17  Fire Department authority to fine voluntary hospital

         18  ambulance providers up to $1,000 for failing to

         19  follow any rule or protocol issued by the

         20  Department.  While the intent of this amendment is

         21  to give the Fire Department more leverage over the

         22  voluntary providers that are contracted to the 911

         23  system, we believe that we currently have sufficient

         24  authority over these providers.  In addition, this

         25  proposal, which gives the Fire Department seemingly
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          2  unfed power to inflict civil penalties for any

          3  infraction of our many rules and protocols is

          4  overboard in approach.  Furthermore, the Department

          5  has an effective deterrent against deficient

          6  performance, and that is the discontinuance of

          7  ambulance tours or participation in the pre hospital

          8  emergency medical health care delivery system.

          9                 As you may know, the State Department

         10  of Health, not the Fire Department,  regulates and

         11  retains ultimate authority over the ambulance

         12  services, and has its own quality assurance

         13  mechanisms.  The Fire Department recognizes the

         14  voluntary providers' role in the 911 system as

         15  independent health care providers participating in a

         16  regional pre- hospital emergency health care system.

         17    The Fire Department administers the ambulance

         18  dispatch operations, and accordingly, we determine

         19  the terms and conditions for participation.

         20                 Currently, the Fire Department has a

         21  high level of oversight over the voluntary providers

         22  participation in the dispatch system.  Our Medical

         23  Affairs Office oversees a quality assurance process

         24  that is based on both data and complaints.  We

         25  investigate every medically- based complaint, and
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          2  review every cardiac arrest and advanced life

          3  support ambulance call report, looking for protocol

          4  non- compliance or irregularities.  We can and do

          5  hold individuals, units, and entire hospitals

          6  accountable for infractions, and in fact, we have

          7  taken steps over the past eighteen months that

          8  include restricting providers and reducing or

          9  eliminating tours.

         10                 Given these quality assurance

         11  procedures nd the Department's ability to hold

         12  voluntary providers accountable for their

         13  performance, the proposed amendment is simply

         14  unnecessary. As noted earlier, the amendment is also

         15  overly broad in scope and provides no method for the

         16  Department to obtain the civil penalties.  The

         17  legislation also fails to identify a mechanism for

         18  appeal, which would be necessary to afford due

         19  process.  We have not doubt that the cost of

         20  litigating the many appeals we could expect in State

         21  Court would far exceed any fines the Department

         22  might collect.

         23                 We believe this bill creates a strong

         24  disincentive for the voluntary providers to

         25  participate in the 911 system, and that would be
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          2  harmful for all New Yorkers, who are better served

          3  by a greater number of ambulance tours.  Currently,

          4  the City has more ambulances on the street than ever

          5  before, which decreases response times.  FDNYEMS

          6  runs approximately 550 tours a day,  with voluntary

          7  providers running approximately 370 tours a day.  In

          8  2001, the citywide average response time fell below

          9  seven minutes for the first time since 1978, when

         10  EMS began charting its performance.

         11                 While the Department will continue to

         12  hold providers accountable for their performance, we

         13  do not think it is helpful to create disincentives

         14  for the voluntary providers to remain part of the

         15  system.  We can benefit all New Yorkers by

         16  attempting to nurture relationships of

         17  accountability with voluntary providers, not

         18  imposing overly harsh penalties on them, on vague

         19  grounds such as violation of any rule or protocol.

         20  In addition, this kind of excessive punishment would

         21  also create glaring inequities between the voluntary

         22  providers and FDNYEMS services, because the

         23  Department cannot lawfully impose similar penalties

         24  to our ambulances for similar infractions.

         25                 Let me move onto Intro. No. 187, a

                                                            9

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  local law amendment that would require the Fire

          3  Department to submit regular performance reports on

          4  response times, among other things. Response times

          5  are unquestionably a top priority for the

          6  Department.   We are driven to keep times low and to

          7  be accountable to every New Yorker serve.  To that

          8  end, we produce performance data for the annual

          9  Mayor's Management Report (MMR) and for the public

         10  on our web site.  We also share information with

         11  Community Boards, Borough Presidents, and of course,

         12  the City Council on a regular basis through

         13  testimony at oversight hearings.  We have always

         14  shared available data with the Council whenever it

         15  has been requested.  Given these many opportunities

         16  for information- sharing, we believe that

         17  legislating the production of data is unnecessary,

         18  particularly where the MMR contains a great deal of

         19  the information called for in this legislation.

         20                 The proposed amendment is highly

         21  prescriptive and would require the expenditure of

         22  time by the Department programmers to create the

         23  very specific reports contained in the legislation.

         24  This effort would cost money and draw staff away

         25  from current tasks, even though the management of
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          2  the Department does not feel the need to have the

          3  data cut in the manner specified in the amendment.

          4                 As an alternative, we would be happy

          5  to provide our monthly Executive Management Report,

          6  which contains most of the data outlined in this

          7  legislation, to any or all Committee Council

          8  members.  If you wish, we can simply add your names

          9  to our distribution list to make that happen.  This

         10  alternative would provide you with even more timely

         11  information, without legislation or the expenditure

         12  of staff time reprogramming computers to produce

         13  data the Department does not need.

         14                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         15  to speak with you today.  I will now take any

         16  questions that you may have.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Thank you very

         18  much, Chief.  I would like to acknowledge that we

         19  have been joined by Council Member Tony Avella of

         20  Queens, as well as, I believe, Council Member Hiram

         21  Monserrate for Queens.

         22                 Council Member Boyland, you have a

         23  question?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  Welcome,

         25  good morning.
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Good morning.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  I have a few

          4  questions. Let me just jump around a bit.  In your

          5  statement you mentioned that the Fire Department's

          6  authority to fine voluntary hospital ambulance

          7  providers up to $1,000 for failure to follow any

          8  rule or protocol issued by the Department, and you

          9  said that the majority of this jurisdiction, or the

         10  jurisdiction of that comes from the Department of

         11  Health.  My concern and question to you is, if you

         12  have the power to determine who is going to receive

         13  the contracts, you have the oversight to look at

         14  these particular participants applying for this

         15  particular position or these particular jobs to work

         16  as an EMS or dispatcher operator, why wouldn't you

         17  have more hands- on control to do a fine system

         18  along with the Department of Health?  Do you

         19  understand that question?

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  I am not

         21  sure, could you rephrase it?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  Okay.  The

         23  concern is that you, in your statement, you said

         24  that you issue most of, you do the oversight in

         25  choosing who is actually going to do the ambulance
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          2  service.  Am I not correct?

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  That would

          4  participate in the New York City 911 system, that is

          5  correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  Exactly.  So

          7  if you, indeed, have that oversight, you are now

          8  saying that the Department of Health, not the Fire

          9  Department, regulates and retains ultimate authority

         10  over ambulance service and its own quality, they

         11  have their own quality assurance mechanism.  My

         12  concern is, why isn't the Fire Department playing a

         13  more stringent role in doing more of the oversight

         14  in terms of the checks and balances, if, indeed,

         15  there is a question that there may be something

         16  lacking?

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  The New York

         18  State Department of Health is the agency that issues

         19  the certificates to EMTs and Paramedics.  That is

         20  what I meant by them having the oversight.  In

         21  addition, they regulate the system.  Okay, they

         22  oversee it, it is the New York State Department of

         23  Health that certifies individuals as EMTs or

         24  Paramedics that is required for them to be part of

         25  the system, to work in the New York City 911 system
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          2  in that capacity.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  So at what

          4  point do they interact with the Fire Department, at

          5  some point, in terms of the beginning stage of when

          6  they are applying for that position?

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Are you

          8  talking about individuals, or 911 participants

          9  external to the Fire Department?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  Both.

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Both, okay.

         12  Individuals that want to become members of the New

         13  York City Fire Department, EMS Command, there is a

         14  certain requirement that they need to have prior to

         15  applying.  For example, they need to have EMT or

         16  Paramedic Certification, as well as a valid driver's

         17  license in the State of New York.  Okay, then they

         18  could apply for a position with the Fire Department.

         19    There is a whole battery of background

         20  investigations that the personnel Department

         21  conducts.  In addition to a medical and a physical

         22  component that one needs to pass in order to be

         23  hired as part of the EMS Command.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  Okay, and

         25  this is conducted by the Fire Department.
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  For Fire

          3  Department employees, that is correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  So that was

          5  my concern, if they would at first, at some point in

          6  time, have to interact with you, after this process,

          7  the compliance, the EMT, the driver's license, the

          8  background check, the person of the physical

          9  compliance, after that point they are, how often do

         10  you come back to look at them to see if they are,

         11  indeed, continually applying with these particular

         12  requirements?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  For the Fire

         14  Department personnel that is constantly monitored.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  Okay.  How

         16  often is constantly monitored?

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  I mean, day-

         18  to- day.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  Wonderful.

         20  Okay, my next question is, how many ambulances, the

         21  City has more ambulances, you said, on the street,

         22  which decreases the response time in terms of them

         23  actually getting to a situation, which is excellent.

         24    And I think, I commend your Department on doing

         25  that.  How many ambulances are we actually looking

                                                            15

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  at on the New York City streets currently?

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Are you

          4  referring to Fire Department ambulances, or the

          5  system as a whole?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  Yes, Sir,

          7  you can answer for both.

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  On the

          9  average we run 550 Fire Department tours daily.  A

         10  tour consists of an eight- hour shift, and they run

         11  around the clock 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

         12                 As far as the voluntary participants,

         13  there is approximately 370 tours that participate in

         14  the New York City 911 system.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND:  Okay, thank

         16  you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Council Member

         18  Hiram Monserrate, you have a question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         20  very much, Madam Chair.  Good morning, Chief.

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Good morning.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I have a

         23  question because I am not sure that I am too clear.

         24  The Paramedics and the EMTs that work for the Fire

         25  Department, the Agency, there is a rank structure;
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          2  is there not, within them, there are supervisors?

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  That is

          4  correct.  Our EMTs and Paramedics are assigned to

          5  ambulance duties.  Above and beyond that we have

          6  supervision.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay, and

          8  then, explain to me, so that we are all clear.  Say

          9  a person of your rank, you are a Chief in the Fire

         10  Department.

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  That is

         12  correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  You also

         14  have oversight over a lieutenant that is doing EMS

         15  work, right, EMTs and Paramedics.  Is that correct?

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  That is

         17  correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay, and

         19  you have rules and regulations that both

         20  firefighters have to obey and your EMTs and

         21  Paramedics have to obey, right?  There are general

         22  rules or a guide or something?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Yes, there

         24  are rules and regulations, procedures, protocols.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Right.
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          2  So if there is a Paramedic or an EMT that is not

          3  doing his job appropriately or performing

          4  appropriately, there is rank structure built in that

          5  can supervise him, that can discipline him,

          6  ultimately it can cost him vacation days through

          7  administrative hearing and so forth.  Is that not

          8  correct?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  If the

         10  situation warrants it, yes, that is correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  If it

         12  warrants it.  What does the Fire Department have

         13  currently in place with regards to disciplining a

         14  private ambulance that is providing 911 service?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  If a

         16  supervisor comes across a problem with a voluntary

         17  participant, okay, depending on the magnitude of the

         18  infraction, it could go in several directions.  If

         19  it is that significant the unit could be off service

         20  on the spot, and then what would happen is it would

         21  be followed with that institution, usually by

         22  operations from Fire Headquarters to that

         23  institution.

         24                 If it is a less significant

         25  infraction, and it could be addressed immediately
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          2  and corrected, then they would be told that it needs

          3  to be corrected, and upon correction they would go

          4  back into service.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Yes, how

          6  many times in the last year has the Fire Department

          7  done this?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Done what?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  What you

         10  just said, take one of these private ambulance

         11  services out of commission or out of service due to

         12  some shortcomings?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  It actually

         14  happened several times with different units.  And,

         15  in fact, there were institutions that were, that we

         16  stopped allowing them to run tours as a result of,

         17  you know, them not being able to live up to, you

         18  know, their requirements with the Department.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  When you

         20  say several, are we talking 5, 10, 20, do you have

         21  any idea?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Well, there

         23  one institution that was pulled out of the system

         24  for a few days.  There was another facility that we

         25  ceased them from running units, and that is still
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          2  continuing, and that has been for several weeks.

          3                 But on a day- to- day basis, if a

          4  problem arises, they are knocked out of service, or

          5  put off service, until the condition is corrected.

          6  I do not have a specific number to give you, but it

          7  has happened over the, you know, past 18 months.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Right,

          9  well, Madam Chair, if I may take the liberty to

         10  request, it might be a good idea if the Fire

         11  Department send us a report, specifically outlining

         12  the incidents and the time frames so that we can

         13  better be educated towards this issue, which is,

         14  obviously, one that is very important.

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  That would

         16  not be a problem.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Council Member

         20  Avella.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Good morning.

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Good morning.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  If you would,

         24  I would like you to go over again, some of your

         25  comments with reference to Intro. 110, specifically
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          2  where you mention that, approving this legislation

          3  would provide disincentives for the voluntary

          4  providers to remain part of the system.  Can you go

          5  over why you consider this legislation to be a

          6  disincentive?

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Right now,

          8  the voluntary hospitals that participate in the 911

          9  system provide a community service and assists the

         10  Fire Department in providing the service to the City

         11  as a whole.  If we would start administering

         12  monetary fines, it would cause some of the hospitals

         13  to reconsider the service that they are providing,

         14  it may consider, providing to their respective

         15  communities.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I honestly do

         17  not understand that answer.  Assuming we are only

         18  going to impose a fine for when a hospital does

         19  something wrong, are you in effect saying that the

         20  voluntary hospitals are providing a bad service, so

         21  that in effect they know they are going to get

         22  fined, and therefore, they are not going to provide

         23  this service and not be part of the system, why

         24  would you assume that this is a disincentive,

         25  because you have the ability to impose a fine?  It
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          2  just makes no sense to me, you are, in effect,

          3  saying to us that you know they provide a bad

          4  service, and you know you are going to have to

          5  imposed these fines.  Do not shake your head,

          6  because that is basically the logic you are saying.

          7  What you are saying makes absolutely no sense, no

          8  sense whatsoever.

          9                 If, in fact, the voluntary hospitals

         10  are providing a good service in lieu of EMS service,

         11  then they should have not reason to fear this

         12  legislation, because there would be no reason for

         13  you to impose a fine.

         14                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GOMBO:  If you

         16  interpreted as what I said that the voluntary

         17  providers are providing a poor service, then I

         18  apologize, up front, and that was not the intent.

         19                 What I am saying is that it is a

         20  system approach where it is not in lieu of, it is in

         21  addition to, as far the voluntary participation in

         22  the system.  In addition to that, what I am saying

         23  is that, we, the Department, believe that the

         24  current practice as far as being able to monitor

         25  them and depending on the infraction, have them
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          2  corrected or put them off service, serves as a

          3  better way of the Fire Department overseeing the

          4  system to making sure that there is a uniform

          5  service provided across the City, as far as medical

          6  care.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I was

          8  responding to what you have in your statement, that

          9  you are saying that passing this legislation is a

         10  disincentive for them to continue, that argument

         11  makes no sense.  And your answer does not elaborate

         12  any more on it either.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Chief, I

         14  think there are a couple of concerns that are just

         15  provoked by the testimony here today.  And it has to

         16  do with the concern, not only for the emergency

         17  response services, but for the uniformity of the

         18  type of care and response that we have throughout

         19  the City.  It appears as though we do not have the

         20  type of mechanisms in place that really establish

         21  that uniformity.  The ability that FDNY has to

         22  really regulate, to discipline, and to really make

         23  sure that we are providing a public safety, public

         24  service is within your grasp as a public service

         25  through FDNYEMS.  However, when you are dealing with
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          2  contracts, you now have the State Department of

          3  Health as a partner in that, and there is this

          4  appearance that the standard and level of service

          5  that is provided by FDNY is not equivalent to those

          6  that we contract from.  That becomes a major

          7  concern, I think, not only for the City, but I think

          8  people are viewing us across the nation because of

          9  9/11.

         10                 And you stated in your testimony that

         11  the voluntary, in response to Tony's remarks, excuse

         12  me, Council Member Avella's remarks, that they

         13  provide a community service.  And I am not sure that

         14  that is all we are looking for from EMS at this

         15  stage.  We recognize, I think more than ever, the

         16  critical role that emergency response, EMT,

         17  Paramedics play in public safety.

         18                 How does FDNY really, really address

         19  that?  If you have a contractual agreement where the

         20  State Health Department basically sets up minimum

         21  requirements, what is the monitoring process that we

         22  have in place to ensure that, in fact, non- profit,

         23  for- profit entities are adhering to that, and what

         24  are the observations from the field that can make

         25  New York City residents assured that they are
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          2  getting quality across the board?

          3                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Okay.  If I

          4  may, regress a little?  In order for, we have two

          5  types of ambulances in New York City, staffed with

          6  either EMTs, Emergency Medical Technicians, or

          7  Paramedics.  All New York City 911 participants be

          8  it Fire Department or voluntary units are staffed

          9  with either two EMTs, certified by New York State

         10  Department of Health on a Basic Life Support Unit,

         11  or two Paramedics, also certified, and the

         12  Paramedics have more training than EMTs and they

         13  provide advanced life support in the New York City

         14  system.

         15                 As far as assuring policies, rules,

         16  regulations, protocols are adhered to, we have

         17  procedures out there that both Fire Department

         18  employees, as well as the voluntary hospital

         19  employees and institutions need to adhere to, to

         20  make sure that the service provided is within

         21  compliance of all rules and regulations.

         22                 In addition to that, we do have

         23  supervision, as I spoke about a little earlier, out

         24  there enforcing the rules for the City, for all

         25  participants in the New York City 911 system.
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          2                 In addition to that, if somebody does

          3  register a complaint, we have a complaint hotline,

          4  where if people are not satisfied with the service

          5  or any part of the service, complaints can be

          6  registered, and then it is followed up, and it does

          7  not make a difference whether it is for a voluntary

          8  hospital unit, or a Fire Department Unit, it is

          9  followed up, and then based on the results of the

         10  investigation, action, you know, it is either found

         11  that some type of action is needed as a result of a

         12  violation of a procedure, or sometimes the

         13  complaints are unsubstantiated.  So there are

         14  mechanisms in place to make sure - -  First of all,

         15  there is a basic level of certification and

         16  experience on the ambulances, as well as different

         17  mechanisms in place to make sure that they are

         18  adhered to and followed by all that participate.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  And let me just

         20  ask, have you ever found a voluntary ambulance

         21  provider to be out of compliance with our rules?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  When you say

         23  our rules, whose rules?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  With FDNYEMS

         25  rules?
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  On occasion.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay.  And I

          4  think Council Member Monserrate got to this, but do

          5  you believe that under current contracts with

          6  providers we are able to adequately penalized the

          7  providers who violate EMS operating rules and

          8  protocols?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Let me ask this,

         11  on a given day how does FDNYEMS know outside of our

         12  550 tours, who the personnel are in the other 370?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  That is a

         14  very good question.  As part of our oversight, we

         15  have a listing of everybody that is authorized to

         16  work at a particular institution.  And it is broken

         17  down not only to institution, but to their level of

         18  certification as well.  So, at any given time, we

         19  know exactly who is on each of the ambulances

         20  throughout the City.  They have to tell us in

         21  advance, you know, they send in a listing, a roster

         22  of personnel that are working that particular day on

         23  all their units. And prior to that, the names are

         24  entered into the system with their certification and

         25  background and all that.
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          2                 If they are not listed or pre-

          3  approved, then the system will not allow them to log

          4  on and the unit will not be put into service.  So,

          5  we are very aggressive with this, we maintain a

          6  database both on individuals and facilities and we

          7  monitor any types of problems both on an individual

          8  basis, as well as the facility.  And if we come

          9  across problems, we address them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Is this done on

         11  a daily basis that they send this information to

         12  you, and is there something that we do to sort of, I

         13  guess, do a spot check to make sure that the

         14  information that we have sent is actually what

         15  exist?  And also, if for whatever reason a

         16  particular EMT or Paramedic is unable to do a tour

         17  and they substitute, are you informed and how

         18  quickly are you informed?

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Okay, it is

         20  actually done tourly.  As I mentioned earlier, we

         21  have eight- hour shifts.  And what happens is this

         22  information is given to our resource coordination

         23  center in advance, so this information could be put

         24  into the system so we know who is working on the

         25  ambulances.
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          2                 As far as follow- up, what we do is,

          3  as I mentioned before, we do have supervision out in

          4  the field.  They inspect our vehicles and all other

          5  vehicles that participate in the 911 system. Part of

          6  this inspection, in addition to making sure that the

          7  vehicle is equipped with all the required equipment,

          8  is to do a verification of the personnel by checking

          9  their certification to make sure that it is the

         10  proper certification to be riding that particular

         11  unit, as well as the institution ID card, driver's

         12  license, et cetera, to verify that the people that

         13  are being called in are actually the people on the

         14  ambulance.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay.  And this

         16  is across the board for every ambulance, including

         17  community- based ambulances, voluntary ambulances,

         18  non- profit, for- profit?  Does it also include like

         19  the local community ambulance corpse, that type of

         20  thing?

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Currently,

         22  it is limited to New York City 911 participants.

         23  However, there is dialogue with some of the

         24  voluntary, and we are working with them as a

         25  security issue post- 911.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay, so right

          3  now, we are simply dealing with those who have been

          4  contracted.  And there are those who operate outside

          5  of those contracts as sort of an auxiliary, for lack

          6  of a better term, that are not under your

          7  jurisdiction?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Well, there

          9  are providers, for example, commercial ambulances

         10  that are not part of the 911 system.  So, you know,

         11  we do not get involved with inspecting or checking

         12  who is on those vehicles.  Those are usually private

         13  contracts.

         14                 As far as, you know, volunteers, as I

         15  mentioned, we are in the process of trying to work

         16  with them to tighten that up as well.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  And who has

         18  responsibility for the commercial ambulances?  Is

         19  that, they have to go through State certification?

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  That is

         21  correct, anybody that works on an ambulance in New

         22  York State, has to be, you know, certified through

         23  the New York State Department of Health.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  And, okay.  Does

         25  the State coordinate with you, and you have an
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          2  understanding of who these commercial operators are?

          3    No.

          4                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  No, we do not

          5  get involved to that, that has to do with licensure,

          6  and we do not get involved with who the State

          7  authorizes to work in a commercial setting.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay, that seems

          9  kind of like something we need to look into there in

         10  light of - -

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  They are not

         12  dispatched through us.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Who are they

         14  dispatched through, do you know?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  You know,

         16  some of them have their own internal dispatch

         17  systems.  For example, if you open up the Yellow

         18  Pages, you will see a whole variety - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Those are like

         20  the small ambulances, those types of guys that, is

         21  that who you are talking about?  Those who do

         22  transporting more so.

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Well a lot of

         24  them are involved with transporting patients from

         25  hospitals to their homes, or inter- facility
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          2  transportation, or you know, to adult homes,

          3  dialysis, you know, things like that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Can they respond

          5  to emergency calls?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  They might

          7  very well respond to emergency calls, but they are

          8  not dispatched through New York City 911.  And if

          9  they come across an emergency in the field they are

         10  obligated to intervene and render care until we can

         11  get there.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Would they also

         13  be obligated to go into sensitive areas that 911

         14  vehicles would typically go into?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  They would

         16  not be dispatched to 911 assignments.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Right, but if

         18  they should stumbled upon it, would they gain

         19  access?

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  What I meant

         21  stumbled, usually that type of situation presents,

         22  is like a motor vehicle accident where they are in

         23  the process of, you know, driving by or involved

         24  with some type of transport, they may get flagged

         25  down. But, for example, if someone was in need of an
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          2  ambulance in this room, they would have no knowledge

          3  that their services would be needed here.  If

          4  someone dials 911, then the 911 system is activated,

          5  and a 911 participant is sent.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  I guess my, what

          7  I am trying to get out is, if someone in one of

          8  these commercial ambulances, regardless of whether

          9  there was a call or not were to arrive at a secure

         10  location and were to drive in and say, you know, we

         11  were called.  Is it up to the discretion of the

         12  individuals in those secure locations to know,

         13  whether in fact, they have been called, and could

         14  that possibly be a breech of security, and we have

         15  no knowledge of it?

         16                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  I am not sure

         17  when you reference a secure location, what exactly,

         18  you know, you might be referencing?  However, if I

         19  may, usually "secure locations" have there own

         20  internal security.  If not, you know, possibly a New

         21  York City Police Officer is there, and as being in

         22  charge of security or at the front gate, they are

         23  usually made aware that there is an EMS call, and so

         24  this way when a unit pulls up on the scene, they

         25  know how to direct them accordingly.  If a unit
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          2  would pull up on a scene of a secure location, and

          3  you know, the security or police officer does not

          4  have any information pertaining to the reason they

          5  are called, I would venture to say that they would

          6  inquire as to where the emergency is.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  And that is

          8  up to the discretion of those individuals or those

          9  who are in authority at that particular location at

         10  that time?

         11                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  That is

         12  correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Okay, and so,

         14  who would they call to verify or check whether in

         15  fact they are responding to something that could

         16  mean a breech of security, who would they call?

         17  They would call the company of those individuals,

         18  say they pulled up in an ambulance to - -

         19                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Not

         20  necessarily.  For example, let's say there was this

         21  location that had their own security.  Okay,

         22  internally the person that would be in charge of the

         23  gate, door, the entrance to that secure location,

         24  would have to be notified by their own security

         25  that, you know, that there is a medical emergency
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          2  and that they should anticipate an ambulance

          3  responding to deal with that emergency.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Okay, let's

          5  just talk, push the envelope a little bit more.

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Okay.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  If there is a

          8  chaotic situation going on, say, you know, some sort

          9  of chemical is, you know, there is some sort of

         10  chemical explosion or biological piece, and one of

         11  these companies happens to be on the radio and they

         12  hear this.  They are not necessarily a part of our

         13  911 system, that will, of course, respond, but they

         14  show up as well.  They are not trained, we do not

         15  know who they are, they get into this location and

         16  make the situation worse.  Could that be plausible?

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  In that

         18  situation we would hope that the police would secure

         19  the perimeter, you know, and question anybody coming

         20  in or out that might not be an emergency service

         21  worker.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Okay.  I just

         23  wanted to just sort of put into perspective for

         24  folks the scope of which we are dealing with EMS,

         25  FDNYEMS, ambulance service, emergency response to in
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          2  the City of New York.  And I think there may be some

          3  areas that, perhaps, the Department should look into

          4  a little bit more, just in term of peace of mind for

          5  the residents and the people of the City of New

          6  York.

          7                 I want to talk  - -

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARE:  Ms.

          9  Clarke.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Oh, okay, sure,

         11  Commissioner.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARE:  Just

         13  some information that is germane to what you are

         14  speaking of.   The City, the Fire Department EMS,

         15  the Office of Emergency Management - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  I am sorry, not

         17  to disrupt you, but you could just, for the record,

         18  just say who you are?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARE:  Oh, I

         20  am Assistant Commissioner John Clare.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Thank you,

         22  Commissioner.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARE:  The

         24  Fire Department, in cooperation with the Office of

         25  Emergency Management, the Greater New York Hospital
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          2  Association, and the New York City Regional EMS

          3  Council, following 9/11 have taken a number of

          4  significant initiatives.  One to assist non- 911

          5  providers in developing policies for ambulance

          6  security and personnel identification.  And has

          7  recently passed a mutual aide protocol in the City

          8  of New York, which first suggests that you do not

          9  respond to an incident that you are not requested to

         10  go to.  We are, operationally, establishing the

         11  concept of mobilization points, so that if there is

         12  a large, chaotic event, ambulances are being

         13  instructed to report to some place, like Shea

         14  Stadium, and wait there prior to being dispatched to

         15  the location.  That was the circumstance in the

         16  follow- up to 9/11 when ambulances reported to the

         17  Chelsea Pier.

         18                 So let me assure you that there are a

         19  number of initiatives by us and all of the other

         20  policy organizations in the City that are trying to

         21  address the issues of these kind outside of the pure

         22  911 response system.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Thank you.  That

         24  is a little bit more reassuring.

         25                 Council Member Monserrate, you had a
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          2  question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

          4  you.  Chief, just one more time, because you made

          5  some statements that I was not entirely clear on.

          6  You spoke about inspections of the 911 private

          7  participants.  Who conducts those?

          8                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  In addition

          9  to their own supervision, our supervision also does

         10  routine inspections of participants.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  So

         12  meaning Fire Department officers.

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Fire

         14  Department, EMS - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:

         16  Supervisors?

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  And what

         19  is the time frame that that usually happens?  Is it

         20  done on a daily basis, on a weekly basis, a monthly

         21  basis?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  No, it's done

         23  actually tourly, we have, you know, unit and

         24  supervision out there 24 hours a day, seven days a

         25  week.  In addition to their other responsibilities
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          2  that is one of them that they do inspect all

          3  ambulance participating, Fire Department ambulances,

          4  voluntary hospital ambulance, et cetera.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Where are

          6  these inspections recorded?

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  They are, we

          8  have an ambulance check list, meaning that when a

          9  supervisor checks an ambulance it is recorded, this

         10  way they know exactly what equipment is required and

         11  whether it is there or not, and there is a check

         12  list that is maintained to make sure that all the

         13  equipment, as well as the personnel is accountable

         14  for.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  This is a

         16  standard FDNY form, is that what that is?

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  It is, yes, a

         18  standard check list, ambulance check list, that is

         19  correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  And who

         21  signs off on this, a supervisor?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  The officer

         23  doing the inspection would sign off on that

         24  document.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay.
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          2  And how many times, let's say on a monthly basis, is

          3  an actual form filled out and signed off by a

          4  supervisor, specifically regarding these private

          5  participants in the 911 system?  You told me on a

          6  yearly basis.

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  I do not have

          8    a specific number for you, but I could, you know,

          9  research that for you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Okay,

         11  then I would also, if the Chair permits me, request

         12  for the Fire Department to produce to this

         13  Committee, specifically those forms that are

         14  standard in the Fire Department regarding

         15  inspections of those vehicles signed off by

         16  supervisors, so that we can review it, perhaps in

         17  report of them.

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Sure, no

         19  problem.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         21  very much, Chief.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Let me just ask

         23  another question with respect the FDNY Guidelines

         24  and Protocols.  We are unable to ensure that the

         25  ambulances that are for- profit or not for- profit
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          2  affiliated with hospitals actually meet our

          3  standards, when I say our, FDNY.  Is that correct,

          4  do we have, can we hold them to the same standards

          5  that we hold ourselves?

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Yes, I

          7  believe we do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  You believe we

          9  do.  Okay.  So that the service that these other

         10  entities, which are basically certified by the State

         11  also meet the standards by which FDNY and EMS

         12  personnel in the City of New York are held?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  That is

         14  correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay.  I was

         16  just wondering about that because we are a bit

         17  concerned, and our Council Finance Division has

         18  estimated about $3.8 million in estimated loss from

         19  the FDNY due to the loss in State Medicaid revenues

         20  because of steering.  And I am sure you have heard

         21  about steering of patients to non- HHC hospitals.

         22  If they are held to our standards, if private EMS

         23  are held to our standards, isn't it our protocol

         24  that patients be taken to the closest possible

         25  facility, isn't that our standard?
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          2                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  We do have a

          3  transportation protocol that does speak to the

          4  facility and the requirement of the ambulance crew

          5  to bring the patient to the closest facility.  We

          6  also have a 10- minute rule, and there are specialty

          7  referrals as well, that needed to be taken into

          8  consideration based on the patient's injury and

          9  ailment by the ambulance crew that is rendering

         10  care.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  And so you feel

         12  comfortable that that standard is being met by these

         13  non- profit, for- profit entities that are not

         14  FDNYEMS.

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF GOMBO:  Yes, we

         16  believe that is correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  I just want to

         18  turn our attention a moment to Resolution 132, which

         19  talks about the billing and collections, because

         20  that has been a concern of ours, particularly in

         21  light of the fact that in many municipalities, EMS

         22  is a revenue generator.  And I just wanted to know,

         23  I know in our discussions and dialogue during the

         24  Executive Budget hearings, that a Request for

         25  Proposal for a company that would essentially
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          2  process our service billing and collection was on

          3  the table.  Can you give us an update as to where we

          4  are with that?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH:

          6  Assistant Commissioner Steve Rush.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay, just pull

          8  the mic a little bit closer to yourself, thanks.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH:  We have

         10  discussed this in the past, and it has been a

         11  painstaking oversight review process to get through

         12  to due diligence.  Obviously, we are bringing on a

         13  corporation that will be doing billing on behalf of

         14  the City, and actually will be doing collection

         15  services, collection agency type services, as well,

         16  as a last resort, which prior to this time has not

         17  been done.  So the due diligence has been very

         18  intensive.  I am happy to report that it is just

         19  about complete, the contract, hopefully, will be

         20  going to the vendor for signature, and then within,

         21  I would say, by the end of this month, and then we

         22  would hopefully have a registration process by the

         23  Comptroller by September, and they can commence

         24  operations late September, October.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  And I know we
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          2  were given some projections about what we, you know,

          3  given our optimism about bringing these folks on

          4  board, we had talked about some projections of what

          5  we could possibly generate, if we did this thing

          6  right.  Are we still on target with those

          7  projections?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH:  We

          9  believe so, but obviously, the sooner we get the

         10  vendors on board, the more confident we would be

         11  with the - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Right.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH: - -

         14  revenue projections going forward.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Are you, can you

         16  give us some insight into who the company is, or

         17  what their track record is in terms of being able to

         18  provide these services?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH:  Well,

         20  they actually are doing in the City of Chicago right

         21  now, as we speak.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  They are doing

         23  it in the City of Chicago right now.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RUSH:  Yes, so

         25  it is another large municipal ambulance service
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          2  provider.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay.  Any other

          4  questions from any of my colleagues?  Well,

          5  gentlemen, I want to thank you so much for bringing

          6  the position of the FDNY to light on these pieces of

          7  legislation.  We will certainly, you know, take it

          8  into consideration, I am sure you will be hearing

          9  much more from us as we move along with respect to

         10  the wishes of the individuals who have submitted

         11  these pieces.  And thanks again, thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 And I just want to announce that we

         14  have some young people here, and they are from the

         15  Citizens' Advice Bureau Community Center, in the

         16  Bronx.  Let's wave and clap to these young people.

         17  They are 45 day campers, 17 counselors, and four

         18  adult chaperons from the Bronx.  We are so happy to

         19  have you here.  We had the FDNYEMS top brass with us

         20  here today.  And I want you young people to know

         21  that being a member of the FDNY and being a member

         22  of EMS is something that you can aspire and you can

         23  accomplish. They are great occupations, and so we

         24  encourage you to find out more about the New York

         25  City Fire Department and New York City EMS. And
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          2  thank you so much for coming this morning.

          3                 At this time, we are going to call a

          4  panel of individuals to give their testimony.  I

          5  would like to call Mr. Robert Ungar of the uniformed

          6  EMTs and Paramedics Union.  I would like to call

          7  David Rosenzweig, Fire Alarm Dispatchers

          8  Association, and Don Rothschild of the Uniformed EMS

          9  Officers Union.

         10                 Gentlemen, if you would just state

         11  your name and affiliation, for the record, and

         12  commence your testimonies?  Thank you.

         13                 MR. UNGAR:  I am Robert Ungar, U- N-

         14  G- A- R.  I am the Legislative Counsel to the

         15  Uniformed EMTs and Paramedics of the New York City

         16  Fire Department.  I am also Legislative Counsel to

         17  the Uniformed EMS Officers Union in the Fire

         18  Department.

         19                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  Don Rothschild,

         20  President, Uniformed EMS Officers Union, Fire

         21  Department.

         22                 MR. ROSENZWEIG:  David Rosenzweig,

         23  President of the Uniformed Fire Alarm Dispatchers

         24  Benevolent Association, and also the President of

         25  the Civil Service Merit Council for New York City.
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          2                 MR. UNGAR:  Good afternoon, Madam

          3  Chair and members of the Committee.  I am absolutely

          4  dazzled by this morning's testimony, and it is going

          5  to take a few minutes to try to debunk some of the

          6  nonsense that was being flung around this room this

          7  morning, and I do not usually speak this way, those

          8  of you who know me, know, I usually do not do this.

          9  But we are really stunned by some of the things that

         10  were said here this morning.

         11                 I mean, it almost sounds as though

         12  the Fire Department management should register as a

         13  lobbyist for the private ambulance companies in this

         14  City.  I mean, the way that they testified this

         15  morning, I mean, they are basically saying we have a

         16  hodge podge of ambulances.  They refer to the Fire

         17  Department ambulances in sort of a respectful way,

         18  and then they talk about this community service that

         19  they do not want to offend by being able to pose

         20  fines when violations are committed.  Come on, this

         21  is not a community service, this is a multi, multi-

         22  million dollar business, which is diverting

         23  tremendous amounts of revenue away from the City of

         24  New York.  We have already had that hearing, we have

         25  had this discussion during the budget.  For the Fire
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          2  Department to come in here and say, well, we have

          3  the Fire Department ambulances and then we have

          4  these community folks, it almost sounds like a bunch

          5  of your nice neighbors coming to help you out, and

          6  we do not want to whack them.  That is ridiculous.

          7                 We are talking about major private

          8  corporations that operate as subcontractors to

          9  hospitals, and we are talking about big hospitals

         10  that make big, big money on the billings that they

         11  do not even share with the City of New York when

         12  they go out on these calls.  So strict

         13  accountability is the rule, we are not offending our

         14  neighbors who are coming to help us, this is not

         15  about volunteer ambulance corps where people give a

         16  few hours a week to help out in the neighborhood.

         17  This is about private sector business people,

         18  invading the Fire Department 911 system for profit.

         19  So let's debunk that right away, this is not a

         20  community service.

         21                 And the fact is, and Council Member

         22  Avella was correct, that their testimony this

         23  morning, that they do not want any additional

         24  authority over these ambulances, is disgraceful.  I

         25  mean, have you ever seen a Commissioner come in and
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          2  say, please, do not give me any authority, I do not

          3  want any responsibility?  Come on, that is nonsense.

          4                 The Fire Department is desperately

          5  afraid that if they have the authority, the next

          6  question you are going to ask them, when was the

          7  last time you used that authority?  We happen to

          8  support this Introduction by Speaker Miller and the

          9  other members, but we also know that if this is

         10  passed the Fire Department is never going to use it.

         11    I think it should have been clear to the members

         12  this morning, that they have no intention of levying

         13  any fines.  They do not even want the authority

         14  because then you will have the right to ask them,

         15  well, when was the last time you levied a fine?  And

         16  they will say, well, we actually have not, because

         17  nobody does anything bad outside of the Fire

         18  Department, where our people are disciplined

         19  constantly, our people are taken off the line

         20  constantly for medical review, and that is good,

         21  because we are a life- saving service, and when we

         22  do make a mistake, it can be critical, or if there

         23  is something that we want to question that is

         24  critical.  But they almost never take a private

         25  ambulance out of the system, because for the same
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          2  reason that they do not want to have the ability to

          3  do fines, they do not want to discourage these

          4  private companies from coming into the system and

          5  making up for the fact that the City of New York is

          6  not providing an EMS system to the people of this

          7  City, we are not providing a system.  Let's call it

          8  what it is, it is a hodge podge of ambulance running

          9  around. And the way that Fire Department, and it

         10  started under Von Essen and Rudy Giuliani, the way

         11  they were going to make up for the fact that they

         12  were not providing the service, is just bring

         13  anybody with a light and siren and put them on the

         14  street, which leads me to topic two.

         15                 The Chair asked a very, very

         16  important question of the Fire Department about the

         17  security issue, about who is driving these

         18  ambulances, and Madam Chair, you were right on the

         19  money, they do not have the vaguest idea who is in

         20  these ambulances.  Mr. Rothschild will address some

         21  of that in a little more detail, because he

         22  represents the supervisors who are supposedly going

         23  to be doing all the big security checking.  But to

         24  answer your question, this business about massing

         25  ambulances and checking them before they go into a
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          2  catastrophe, that is in the event that the Empire

          3  State Building collapses.  That is not when someone

          4  has a cardiac or a report of a cardiac at Madison

          5  Square Garden.  The fact of the matter is that any

          6  private ambulance, lights and siren onto the

          7  sidewalk or drive right up to the scene without

          8  being stopped or questioned, because if you delay an

          9  ambulance by stopping it and asking a lot of

         10  questions, you are going to kill the patient.

         11  Because in a true cardiac arrest situation you do

         12  not have two or three minutes to check out the

         13  personnel then, because that is how long it takes to

         14  lose the patient.  So what happens is unfetted

         15  access, stadiums, hospitals, schools, churches,

         16  right here, City Hall, right now, call for a

         17  cardiac, you may get a Fire Department ambulance or

         18  you may get somebody else, but we do not know who.

         19                 And when they pull up right in front

         20  of the door, because they are going to let those

         21  barricades down and let that ambulance pull right in

         22  front of this building, you better know who is

         23  inside of it.  This is a big problem.

         24                 Channel 4 last week did an expose on

         25  a bunch of ambulances parked up in the Bronx with
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          2  Fire Department insignia ready to be stolen in a big

          3  open lot.  I mean, what are we talking about here, I

          4  mean, they come in here and say, oh, we are checking

          5  ID's, we are doing it, baloney, baloney.  They have

          6  no concept of who is driving these things around,

          7  and there is unfetted access.

          8                 Council Member Monserrate was a

          9  police officer for many years in this City, I saw

         10  the look on his face when that testimony was being

         11  given, he knows they are full of garbage.  He was a

         12  cop, he did not stop ambulances and say, are you

         13  EMTs or terrorists, or EMTs who are terrorists?  I

         14  mean, you know, come on, let's get real.

         15                 So that is a big concern, and I know

         16  that that does not directly address the issue of

         17  this, but since it came up, I thought it needed to

         18  be addressed, because you deserve an honest answer,

         19  and you cannot get it from Chief Gombo because

         20  tomorrow morning he can be Captain Gombo.  And you

         21  cannot get it from Steve Rush, who is a really nice

         22  guy, because tomorrow he could be civilian out- of-

         23  the- job Rush.  Okay, they cannot come in here and

         24  tell you that  We can.

         25                 And I think instinctively the members
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          2  of this Council understand that, because let's face

          3  it, if you had someone and you called 911 for

          4  someone to come to your office, are you going to go

          5  to the door and say, show me your criminal record

          6  and history before you let the guy in the building?

          7  You look like a Paramedic.  When you get off the

          8  ambulance, these people take big boxes with them

          9  into buildings, you hope that it is a defibrillator.

         10    What if it is a biochemical weapon, what if it is

         11  a bomb?  Nobody is going to stop these guys and say

         12  we want to search your equipment.  If I am

         13  incorrect, Council Member Monserrate, please, you

         14  know, correct me.

         15                 Also the fact is that most times when

         16  we respond in, nobody knows we are coming, because

         17  if someone falls down, hurts themselves at a

         18  stadium, the nearest bystander picks up a pay phone,

         19  dials 911 and says, I am on the third level of Shea

         20  Stadium and somebody just fell down and we need

         21  help.  They do not say, well, I cannot report this,

         22  I have to go through the channels of security, I

         23  mean what kind of bull is that?

         24                 Parades, at the St. Patrick's Day

         25  Parade this year, not one Fire Department ambulance
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          2  was assigned to that parade, on every single block

          3  there was some kind of a private ambulance parked on

          4  a corner.  Do you know how many thousands of people

          5  were there, millions of people were on the street

          6  that day, and we do not know who was in those

          7  ambulances.

          8                 So now I am done with security, I

          9  think I made the point.  And I appreciate your

         10  allowing me to go into that area for you.

         11                 With regards specifically to this

         12  Introduction dealing with the penalties.  We

         13  support, the Uniformed EMTs and Paramedics support

         14  this legislation.  But we want to make it very clear

         15  that we do not support it as a substitute for the

         16  fact that we do not believe these people belong here

         17  at all for all of the reasons that we have hashed

         18  out at prior hearings and a little bit more today.

         19  For questions of training, control, delivering a

         20  service to the people of the City of New York from

         21  the Fire Department on an unwitting population that

         22  has no reason to know better when an ambulance comes

         23  to their house, it looks like an ambulance, so it

         24  must be good, right?  So we feel that the authority

         25  should be granted to the Department, even though we
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          2  also know that they will never use it, but we do not

          3  intend to leave it at that.

          4                 We are going to be back to talk to

          5  you all about how we are going to straighten out

          6  this whole issue.  Okay, this is a much bigger

          7  picture and this is a piece.  So we support it, but

          8  please understand that we do not think this is the

          9  end of the issue, because the Commissioner can levy

         10  a fine every once in a while.  Because we are

         11  talking about a multi, multi- million dollar piece

         12  of business.  So when you talk about levying a fine

         13  occasionally for a thousand bucks, you know, that is

         14  the cost of doing business.  And when we take a look

         15  at companies now that are in trouble, like, you

         16  know, all for defrauding their shareholders, you

         17  know, I mean, what is a thousand dollars here and

         18  there on a fine.  Okay, so that is a big problem.

         19                 The other thing is, you know, Chief

         20  Gombo testified that, you know, these people who

         21  come into the system, they are meeting with Greater

         22  New York Hospital Association, a very, very good

         23  group when it comes to running hospitals, but maybe

         24  not, they should not be running the Fire Department.

         25    That, you know, we are talking about security, how
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          2  we are going to check out people out. Well, I will

          3  just remind the Council about a company called,

          4  Argent Bright Security, which provided the security

          5  in almost every airport in the United States of

          6  America, which ensured Congress that we do

          7  background checks, we have got it under control, and

          8  in fact, they had nothing under control.  Profit was

          9  more important than security at our airports, so you

         10  know that profit is more important than security in

         11  an ambulance, come on, we are talking about

         12  airports, we are talking about billions of dollars

         13  worth of revenue to this company.  And we are

         14  talking about a company that found to be, after

         15  Congressional investigations, so bad in terms of

         16  knowing who was doing their security at the airports

         17  that they were federalized.

         18                 So when the people in the Fire

         19  Department comes in here and says, we are talking to

         20  the private sector, we can trust the private

         21  ambulance companies because we had a meeting with

         22  them and they promised us they are going to do the

         23  right thing.  Just think Argent Bright Security, and

         24  just think that they are not here any more, because

         25  finally, the federal government said, hey, this is
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          2  bad.  And here we have a City problem, and

          3  hopefully, at some point the City, this Council will

          4  say, hey, enough of this, this is bad, and

          5  certainly, this is not good timing to have strange

          6  people driving around in ambulances.

          7                 So we encourage support for this

          8  particular Introduction.

          9                 I want to address the issue of the

         10  New York State Department of Health, for a second,

         11  because, again, they raised it, okay.  This is the

         12  latest diversionary tactic.  I mean, we have never

         13  heard this one before, until it was in the Chief

         14  this week. As a matter of fact, last week's Chief,

         15  the spokesman for the Fire Department said, in fact,

         16  and I will paraphrase it, but only a little, was

         17  that, they said, we are capable of monitoring FDNY

         18  personnel, but they admitted that they cannot

         19  monitor everybody. They said, the Fire Department

         20  can monitor its own people, but we cannot monitor

         21  everybody, it's a quote, it was in the Chief last

         22  week from their spokesman at the Press Office at the

         23  Fire Department.

         24                 So when we look at these things and

         25  we say, you know, on balance, is the right thing
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          2  being done, clearly, there is not, and we need this

          3  enforcement mechanism because right now there is

          4  nothing going on out there.  Units only get pulled

          5  when there is some really wild infraction that too

          6  many people know about and it winds up going over

          7  the radio and there are computer printouts, and now

          8  it is going to be an embarrassing thing for the

          9  Department, so they have to pull the unit for an

         10  hour or two, until they can rectify their issues.

         11                 But the State Department of Health

         12  issue is like saying that the Motor Vehicle Bureau

         13  issues drivers' licenses, and now we expect the

         14  Motor Vehicle Bureau to come down from Albany and

         15  enforce all the traffic laws.  That is baloney.  DOH

         16  is the licensing authority for EMTs and Paramedics.

         17  They look at things when it is time to yank

         18  somebody's card, they are not on a minute to- minute

         19  basis able or responsible for monitoring everything

         20  that goes on in our system, we are.  When there is

         21  an infraction involving an EMT or a Paramedic that

         22  may affect their license, the City is supposed to

         23  report that, and in fact, the City, the Fire

         24  Department does report that to DOH, which had

         25  oversight of whether you keep your license, just
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          2  like the Department of Motor Vehicles, the Police

          3  Department cannot take your driver's license away.

          4  But you do not get pulled over by the Department of

          5  Motor Vehicles for speeding, you get pulled over by

          6  Highway 3 on the Grand Central Parkway, and they

          7  say, hey, I am giving you a ticket.  DMV decides

          8  whether to take your license away.  This is buck

          9  passing, and this is a new diversionary tactic.  Oh,

         10  it's DOH who has the responsibility, baloney.  DOH

         11  has one investigator in New York City, we have got

         12  3,000 people in EMS, come on, we do over a million

         13  calls a year, give me a break.

         14                 So do not be confused that DOH has

         15  any actual field responsibility for oversight, it is

         16  totally within the Fire Department, and DOH will

         17  probably tell you that because they are not going to

         18  want to take the responsibility for this mess, and

         19  they know what they got in the way of staffing.  So

         20  whenever we hear this new thing about, no, no, no,

         21  that is not us, it is DOH, and anyone with an EMT

         22  card is good enough, we disagree.

         23                 I made notes, okay, let me move to

         24  the Response Time Bill 187, support, clearly.  We

         25  supported this concept under the former City
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          2  Council, and it never came to pass.  The fact that

          3  this bill has come back in a new and updated and

          4  improved form, this is a good thing, because it will

          5  give you the opportunity to look at numbers that the

          6  last Administration did not want you to see.  They

          7  do not want us to see it either, but sometimes we

          8  are able to get the information, and then we give it

          9  to you.  But better they should give it to

         10  everybody.  Because better that we should really

         11  find out things like, for instance, one of the main

         12  reasons that the numbers were being fudged in the

         13  MMR, was because the Fire Department was trying to

         14  show that the CFRD Engine Company Program was a huge

         15  success, because since we have CFRD, you get a

         16  response to an EMS call within four minutes.

         17                 Well, the question is, who do you

         18  get?  Okay, now, CFRD, all in the Fire Department

         19  have for years contended that it ties up engine

         20  companies unnecessarily when you should just have an

         21  ambulance going on a job.  Because the CFRD

         22  companies can defibrillate, but there is not a whole

         23  lot of else that they can do.  So if you have a car

         24  accident with fractures, it is really about the

         25  Paramedics and the EMTs, and the firefighters have
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          2  limited ability to render assistance, although, they

          3  really do try because that is how our firefighters

          4  are, they always try.  But what the public really

          5  needs in that kind of a situation of the trauma is

          6  that they need an EMT or a Paramedic.

          7                 So rather than show that engine

          8  companies were getting to EMS calls quickly, but the

          9  ambulances, we are still taking a while to get

         10  there, because we do not have enough ambulances,

         11  they started to average the numbers.  So that they

         12  could come in here and honestly say that the Fire

         13  Department will be at your door in four minutes no

         14  matter what your emergency is. Except we get back to

         15  the question of who, and that is what they did not

         16  want you to know.  They did not want you to know

         17  that engine companies were being tied up for long

         18  periods of time, unable to respond to other fire

         19  calls in their own neighborhoods, because they were

         20  standing around in an EMS call, where they actually

         21  were not the provider.  Where, you know, they are

         22  the radio saying, send the ambulance.  And now they

         23  are stuck there for 20 minutes or 8 minutes or

         24  whatever the ambulance response time in on that

         25  particular job, and they cannot go to calls in their
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          2  own neighborhood.  And that was originally why the

          3  last Administration started to average that number

          4  and took away your ability to see the engine company

          5  response times versus the ambulances.

          6                 We know it takes longer for

          7  ambulances to get to a call than fire trucks, we

          8  know that.  And that is something that we have

          9  constantly aimed to improve.  But for you to get an

         10  honest count to what your constituents are getting

         11  at their door, and also for the firefighters to get

         12  an honest count, because their time is being wasted

         13  on a lot of these calls, when they should be doing

         14  other things.  I mean they have got a job to do, and

         15  it is a really rough and dangerous job, they should

         16  not be sitting out there on a call where they cannot

         17  render service, and then they are going to come in

         18  and tell you, but do not worry, somebody was at the

         19  call. Well, we can have a sanitation truck maybe run

         20  over there, you know, or maybe the Parks Department,

         21  if they are free.  But you get the point.  It is

         22  about who is coming.

         23                 So we strongly support the idea of

         24  breaking out the response times so that this Council

         25  will be able to see exactly what is going on.
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          2                 With regard to the oversight hearing

          3  that you are talking about on the money, the thing

          4  that is kind of appalling is that the City, even

          5  after the hearings, and even after the Fire

          6  Department admitted that the unions' revenue

          7  projections were more accurate than the City's

          8  revenue projections, I mean, that was definitely a

          9  first for me, 13 years I have never heard that

         10  before, and we appreciate the City's honesty on

         11  that.  But even after admitting that our revenue

         12  projections were much more accurate, they came in

         13  here and they slashed up the EMS budget anyway.

         14                 So when we get to, when get down to

         15  the money, you have to ask yourself, if they knew

         16  that our revenue projections were correct, and if

         17  they knew that they were cutting the budget anyway,

         18  then how come that company is not already on board.

         19  I mean, this due diligence thing is something that

         20  you heard about months and months ago when we were

         21  at the budget hearings.  And you know, come on,

         22  let's face it, if I ran my private business, if I

         23  ran my firm where I, you know, could not get a

         24  vendor to do work for me, you know, for a year and a

         25  half because, you know, due diligence, that is
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          2  baloney.  Dun and Bradstreet checked the references,

          3  let's go.  Whatever is holding this up, is bad.  But

          4  what it is doing, is it is crippling our ability to

          5  prove our point to you, which is that we are a

          6  revenue generator.

          7                 And since they are not even going to

          8  get started until September, we are going to already

          9  be into negotiating on the next budget, by the time

         10  they even start collecting the money.  So they are

         11  going to be back here next year, and they are going

         12  to say we have to cut the EMS budget again, and you

         13  are going to say, how are the revenues?  And they

         14  are going to say, I do not know, we just got

         15  started.

         16                 So, you know, we think you should

         17  have a full blown hearing on the money.  And from

         18  our point of view, we will bring experts here that

         19  were here before on the budget, but we will bring

         20  them back here, EMS revenue collection experts to

         21  talk to you about the details of what other cities

         22  are doing and how it works versus what we are not

         23  doing here in New York City.  While we are busy

         24  reducing the number of Fire Department ambulances

         25  that are going to ambulance calls in your
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          2  neighborhoods.  I mean, this is disgraceful.  It has

          3  to stop, and we are hopeful that the Council will be

          4  our biggest supporter in getting the constituents

          5  the Fire Department service.

          6                 I mean, I think Chief Gombo was put

          7  in a tough position here today.  Okay, he was the

          8  designated fall guy for the afternoon, because he

          9  had to deliver testimony that was really not very

         10  credible and admit to the City Council that we have

         11  a hodge podge of people running around our City.

         12  Would we do this in the Police Department?   What if

         13  I called 911 and said that there is somebody outside

         14  my parking smacking his wife or girlfriend around,

         15  and they said, okay, fine, and they said 109 George,

         16  because this is just another sector car, and they

         17  send a sector car over, except it turns out to be

         18  two guys that, you know, their other job is

         19  protecting Walbaums.  This is, I mean, thing about

         20  concept, we would not do that.  So we do not even do

         21  it in the Sanitation Department, private garbage is

         22  picked up by City garbage folks, you know, by

         23  Sanitation workers.  Okay, we do not even do it in

         24  Sanitation.  Why are we doing this in the Fire

         25  Department and then coming in and saying, oh, it's
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          2  great because it is community service.  Do not kid

          3  yourself, it is a multi- million dollar business, I

          4  think I made my point.  I thank you for your

          5  indulgence, and now I am done.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  I would just

          7  like to, before you begin the rest of your

          8  testimony, I would like to acknowledge that we have

          9  been joined by our Majority Whip, Council Member,

         10  what is your name, again?  Leroy Comrie from Queens,

         11  one of my best buddies, this is horrible.  In any

         12  event, - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  From Queens.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  From Queens.  I

         15  believe that Council Member Monserrate has a

         16  question for you.

         17                 MR. UNGAR:  I am not leaving.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

         19  you, Madam Chair. Mr. Ungar, I have a question, you

         20  know, I know you were here and you heard the

         21  questions I asked of Chief Gombo, specifically

         22  regarding these supposed ambulance inspections, if

         23  there is a standardized form, he stated, that there

         24  is.  And do you have any idea how many times the

         25  EMS, or, excuse me, the EMT, FDNY personnel has an
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          2  inspection done of their ambulance or their

          3  services?

          4                 MR. UNGAR:  Councilman, to answer

          5  your question, I would like to defer to Mr.

          6  Rothschild who is actually President of the Union

          7  representing those officers.

          8                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  Good afternoon.  In

          9  regards to your question, on the municipal side the

         10  ambulances are inspected before they go out on

         11  their, the beginning of their shift.  During a

         12  course of a tour, the EMS supervisor may see, may

         13  inspect one or two ambulances not in the system

         14  during the course of the eight hour shift.  The

         15  supervisor is out there providing oversight, out in

         16  the field.  He is doing hospital inspections to see

         17  if the hospitals are overcrowded, he is

         18  investigating complaints, he is ensuring that

         19  ambulances are in their proper location.  So he is

         20  doing a whole litany of things out in the field.

         21                 The allegation, and that is the best

         22  word I can use for it, that every ambulance is

         23  checked once a tour, is an outright lie, it does not

         24  happen.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I am
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          2  sure.

          3                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  It cannot happen, it

          4  is an impossibility.  And for Chief Gombo, who used

          5  to be a Lieutenant out in the field and was a

          6  Captain out in the field, to turn around and make a

          7  statement like that is incredible.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  All

          9  right.  To the supervisors, are you also in charged

         10  with the responsibility of inspecting the private

         11  911 participants?

         12                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  Up until about two

         13  and a half months ago, the EMS Lieutenants and

         14  Captains were basically told hands off.  What had

         15  happened was one of our Lieutenants, two of our

         16  Lieutenants, one in Queens and one in another

         17  Borough, did not recognize individuals that were

         18  riding on a private ambulance that were listed in

         19  the computer.  We can pull up the roster for a

         20  particular area, they did not match.  So they

         21  questioned the crew, while they were legitimately

         22  employees of the hospital, the computer showed that

         23  there were two other individuals that were assigned

         24  to that ambulance that day.  They made a report,

         25  what is called, an unusual occurrence report, about
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          2  this.

          3                 A few weeks after those incidents

          4  occurred, a directive came out to start, you know,

          5  on a ongoing basis, but did not say how often,

          6  periodically check the credentials of personnel

          7  assigned to ambulances, make sure that they have an

          8  EMT card, a Paramedic cards are proper, that they

          9  have their proper identification, and that they are

         10  who they are, they are the ones assigned to that

         11  vehicle for that tour.

         12                 The problem that has occurred is that

         13  we are receiving verbal reports at this time, that

         14  crews are being changed in the middle of their tours

         15  and we are not being notified of it. The other issue

         16  is while a hospital may hire somebody, they do not

         17  do the background checks that we feel should be done

         18  for every single employee that is coming into your

         19  house or going into sensitive locations.

         20                 You asked a question earlier, about

         21  going, excuse me, Council Member Clarke asked a

         22  question about going into secure locations.   An

         23  ambulance pulls up on a scene, nobody is going to

         24  question that ambulance.  We know that there are

         25  EMTs that are monitoring our radio frequencies, they
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          2  are not scrambled.  You get a scanner out there, you

          3  buy an icom radio, program it in, you will hear the

          4  calls going out.  So you can turn around and get to

          5  the call before anybody else does.

          6                 As you saw last week, Channel 4, the

          7  expose about the ambulances not being secured.

          8  Those ambulances also have our radios on board, we

          9  are also missing a large amount of portable radios

         10  that have not only our frequencies, but the police

         11  frequencies in them.  The Fire Department will not

         12  tell you that though.  Well, I am telling you that

         13  today, we know that there is a significant number of

         14  portable radios that were lost or stolen in the

         15  private sector that have not been reported properly.

         16    In fact, the Fire Department has turned around

         17  recently and told these hospitals that you are

         18  responsible to replace that portable radio out of

         19  your own funds.  But up until that point, there was

         20  no accountability.  And what would happen is an

         21  ambulance crew from a hospital would come into an

         22  EMS location and say, we do not have a radio, we

         23  need to borrow one of yours, and that is where we

         24  have a large security problem.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I am very

                                                            70

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  clear that we have a huge security problem with

          3  respect to using private companies to do 911 EMS

          4  work.

          5                 But I just want to focus in on the

          6  fact of these inspection forms that he stated were a

          7  standard form, and he also stated that he was going

          8  to produce copies of those reports and probably an

          9  analysis.  What I am looking to get an answer to is,

         10  how routine are these inspections, and how many of

         11  those inspections are being done of the private 911

         12  participants? Because I am trying to determine,

         13  despite the clear intentions of the FDNY to try to

         14  have more privateers involved in 911 work,

         15  ultimately, they can delegate some of the work, but

         16  not the responsibility of the supervision.  It

         17  appears to me that that is a pretty logical

         18  analysis.  So what I am trying to illicit from you

         19  is, are your supervisors ultimately responsible for

         20  those private 911 participants, and are they being

         21  inspected at the same rate as the public employees?

         22                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  We have no real

         23  authority over any ambulance other than our own.

         24  The inspections that we do, they are standard form,

         25  which if he does not provide it to you, I can fax it
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          2  over to you within the next couple of hours, is a

          3  standard ambulance check list, that you are making

          4  sure the ambulance complies with New York State

          5  regulation.

          6                 A supervisor in the field is required

          7  to do three to five a day, but it does not say whose

          8  ambulance, they can do three or five municipal

          9  ambulances, or three municipal ambulances and one

         10  non- municipal ambulance.  But there is no break

         11  down that you have to inspect X amount of municipal

         12  ambulances and X amount of private ambulances.

         13                 The other issue is that since we do

         14  have any real authority over these ambulances, we

         15  have been refused access to inspect those vehicles.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  I think

         17  that is a very important point, and it was part of

         18  my line of questioning to the Chief regarding in the

         19  EMS and the FDNY there is a rank structure, there

         20  are supervisors, there is protocol, there is general

         21  orders or guide, whichever way you want to describe

         22  it.  But technically, these privateers are not your

         23  employees, and you are not directly their

         24  supervisor.

         25                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  Correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  And they

          3  are not mandated either by a condition of their

          4  employment or any orders, in fact, to take orders

          5  from you or to even be respectful of you, they are

          6  not mandated to do so.

          7                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  Right, the only time

          8  that they are supposed to, the only real mandate

          9  that they have is at the scene of a multiple

         10  casualty incident, where as the coordinating agency

         11  in the City of New York, they are supposed to adhere

         12  to the instructions of the EMS supervisor.

         13                 Does it happen all of the time?  No,

         14  it does not.

         15                 Each hospital gets a copy of the Fire

         16  Department, EMS Operating Guide.  They are supposed

         17  to filter it down to their employees when they hire

         18  them, and it is only selected portions that apply to

         19  them, not all the guides apply to them.  You ask any

         20  of those employees on those ambulances, have they

         21  ever seen one, and they will tell you, no, they have

         22  never seen it, they do not even know what, all they

         23  know is what their hospital protocols and their

         24  hospital regulations, they do not know what their

         25  responsibility is to EMS.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  And the

          3  Chief also testified here today that he knew of

          4  several incidents where private participants were

          5  suspended, but he could not give me a number.  And I

          6  also asked him to produce, those are the two things

          7  we asked him to produce to us.

          8                 Do you have any ideas how many times

          9  these privateers have been suspended?

         10                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  It is very few and

         11  far between, and the only time that I have heard

         12  that happening, is when it ended up being a media

         13  event, it was a high profile case.

         14                 MR. UNGAR:  If I may, Councilman,

         15  just to illuminate on that issue a little bit more.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Just state your

         17  name again, for the record?

         18                 MR. UNGAR:  I'm sorry, Madam Chair,

         19  Robert Ungar. We do not actually know of any time

         20  that any particular hospital was shut down from the

         21  EMS system.  We are aware of a case in Queens in

         22  Jamaica Hospital where they were transporting a very

         23  young, I believe, 13- year- old female to the

         24  hospital with severe asthma, and her and her Dad

         25  were in the ambulance.  And a more profitable call
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          2  came over the air, and you will be sensitive to

          3  this, Councilman, a police officer shot call came

          4  over the air. That thing that was inappropriate

          5  about this was that there were plenty of Fire

          6  Department units to respond.  The medics on that

          7  Jamaica ambulance threw the 13- year- old asthmatic

          8  girl and father out of the ambulance in the middle

          9  of the street and ran to the police call because

         10  either it was, what we call buffing the job, because

         11  it is much more exciting to go to a cop shot, than

         12  it is to transport an asthma case, or it was a more

         13  profitable transport. Because when you have someone

         14  who is shot, it is a higher level of injury, better

         15  chance of an admission back to our own base

         16  hospital, which is the whole issue surrounding the

         17  steering thing.

         18                 In that case, the hospital refused to

         19  even discipline those folks, until the Fire

         20  Department threatened to pull the plug on Jamaica

         21  Hospital.  They would not even discipline these

         22  people.  The threat was made, if you do not do

         23  something, because we made into a media event, I

         24  mean, how do you do that kind of thing.  We were

         25  sympathetic to the police officer, but he was not,
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          2  not going to get treatment, there were plenty of

          3  ambulances on the way.  I mean, this is a major

          4  event, a police officer or firefighter down is a big

          5  event, we have plenty of coverage, they buffed that

          6  job and threw a kid out of the ambulance to do it.

          7  And the hospital's response was that they would not

          8  even discipline him until the Fire Commissioner

          9  finally, under pressure from the media, because the

         10  Times was on this, said, if you do not do something

         11  with these two guys, we are going to have to pull

         12  the plug on you. And then they sat them down for a

         13  while for some retraining or some nonsense like

         14  that.

         15                 So that is it, otherwise, we are not

         16  familiar with any hospitals that has been shut off.

         17  And the business of pulling units, again, it has to

         18  be raised to the level that something is up coming

         19  over the radio system where everybody is hearing it,

         20  and it is like, uh oh, we got caught.  And

         21  Councilman, while we do not have access to all of

         22  those 911 records where ambulances are pulled, you

         23  should be, you, the Council, should be asking for

         24  that, because when they pull them, a lot of the time

         25  they are actually pulled and there are notations
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          2  made always on the 911 updates when they are pulled.

          3    But you are going to find that it is so few and

          4  far between as compared to the enforcement over our

          5  people, that you are going to know that they do not

          6  really want to upset these private companies.

          7                 Because they are right, if they upset

          8  them, then it becomes less profitable and they will

          9  pull out of the system.  And then the Fire

         10  Department will have to provide the service, and

         11  they do not want to.  It is sort of a close loop

         12  thing.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

         14  you.

         15                 MR. UNGAR:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Lieutenant

         17  (sic), did you want to just give some brief comments

         18  on the legislation?

         19                 MR. ROTHSCHILD:  Yes, I did.  As far

         20  as Intro. 110, we fully support the Intro.  And Mr.

         21  Ungar has pretty much said the exact things that we

         22  were going to say, so I am not going to continue

         23  into that, other than we inspect.

         24                 I do want to make a couple of

         25  clarifications though. Chief Gombo sat here and said
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          2  that the City has more ambulances out there than it

          3  ever did before.  Well, in 1996, we had 570

          4  ambulances out there, 570 eight- hour tours out

          5  there, from the Fire side.  The non- municipal side

          6  was 133 tours.  Today, minus the budget cut tours, I

          7  believe, Chief Gombo said we are down to 530, I

          8  think he said, 550.  The non- municipal went up from

          9  133 to 370 today, so, yes, there are other

         10  ambulances out there, but they are not ours.  We

         11  have lost a lot of control on that.

         12                 Any how, let me switch over to Intro.

         13  187.  As I understand it, it is the Council's intent

         14  to ensure that the Fire Department meets its goals

         15  and objectives in a performing rapid response to

         16  emergency calls, and that operational performance

         17  indicators are broken down to specific categories in

         18  communities. As Mr. Ungar said earlier, this has

         19  been ongoing legislation dating back to the previous

         20  Council.

         21                 In 1995, we testified that responses

         22  to fire- related assignments by fire suppression

         23  units would increase the Fire Department taking in

         24  the additional role of first responders to medical

         25  emergencies.  Our prediction, unfortunately, was
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          2  accurate based on the previous Mayor's Management

          3  Report.  One of the most glaring examples that

          4  response times in Queens went up approximately 10

          5  seconds, if I remember correctly, which in a fire

          6  situation is a life time.

          7                 We offered testimony again in 1997,

          8  1998, and every year that this Intro. Was presented

          9  to the City Council.  The steps that the Council is

         10  proposing would be a significant tool for the

         11  Council and to every community in the City.  The

         12  Council would be better informed at budget requests

         13  and hearings such as this.  Individuals and

         14  communities could identify what types of emergency

         15  exist within a community, Community Boards could be

         16  better informed during budget hearings, and address

         17  complaints of service. Communities could also

         18  determine whether they are receiving adequate

         19  service or if service needs to be adjusted.

         20                 In our opinion, Intro. 187 is long

         21  overdue and would be a benefit to the Council and to

         22  every community.

         23                 Contrary to claims the Department

         24  made at prior attempts to pass a bill of this type,

         25  this is the exact report that EMS supervisors were
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          2  given on a monthly basis at the EMS Battalion

          3  locations.  We got those reports every single month,

          4  and it even went further than what you asked for.

          5  We had a breakdown by unit, but tour.  We had the

          6  response times on segments 1, on segments 1 through

          7  3, the dispatch time, the travel time, the time

          8  spent at the hospital, and the complete call.  When

          9  we presented a copy of one of the reports to the

         10  City Council, to the prior Committee, miraculously

         11  we stopped getting those reports, they did not come

         12  to the ambulance stations any more.  The commanding

         13  officers of the garages no longer had the ability to

         14  see if they had to make adjustments in the operation

         15  of their facility of how their units operate.

         16                 So the question needs to be asked,

         17  why did they stop it, what are they hiding, because

         18  they are not letting us know, do our job properly,

         19  and they are not letting you do your job properly by

         20  withholding this information.  The averages in the

         21  MMR are just that, averages.  They do not break it

         22  down by community, they do not break it down by

         23  individual ambulances like the report that we used

         24  to get.  That was a fantastic tool for the EMS

         25  supervisor, it would be a fantastic tool for the
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          2  City Council and for the Community Board, and we

          3  wholeheartedly support the Intro. To make sure that

          4  those reports get to you and get to the Community

          5  Boards. I would be a, it would open a lot of

          6  people's eyes, and keeping it separate from the

          7  first responded companies going in and the

          8  ambulances going in.  So you could see how long it

          9  takes an ambulance to get to a scene, in what area

         10  gets the best service versus the not so great

         11  service, and also you would see the differences

         12  between how the municipal EMS system responds versus

         13  how the non- municipal EMS system responds, because

         14  they were also in that report.  Therefore, on behalf

         15  of the membership and as a resident of the City, I

         16  wholeheartedly support Intro. 187.

         17                 We also support Resolution 132.  We

         18  have been complaining for years that the Department,

         19  and prior to the merger, HHC, failed to properly

         20  bill for ambulance transportation.  This City has

         21  lost millions upon millions of dollars over the

         22  years.  If it must take a law to get the Department

         23  to perform its collections properly, than so be it.

         24  We firmly believe that if the City improved its

         25  collections by 50 percent, EMS could be self
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          2  sufficient.  Not only this a budget issue for the

          3  Fire Department and for the City as a whole, but it

          4  is also a budget issue for the Health and Hospital

          5  Corporation.

          6                 And I know that the President of HHC,

          7  or the Chairperson of HHC came into these Chambers

          8  and admitted that the revenue for HHC has gone down

          9  as the increase in non- municipal ambulances

         10  continued.

         11                 I thank you for your time, and I

         12  await any questions you may have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Please state

         14  your name and affiliation?

         15                 MR. ROSENZWEIG:  Good afternoon,

         16  Madam Chair.  My name is David Rosenzweig.  I am the

         17  President of the Uniformed Fire Alarm Dispatchers

         18  Benevolent Association.

         19                 First off, I would like to just talk

         20  about Intro. 110.  I found it quite amusing that the

         21  Fire Department said that they had sufficient

         22  authority.  We already knew that, that was what this

         23  bill is all about.  We knew they always had the

         24  authority, they just never used it.  So what this

         25  bill is going to do, it is going to fortify it, and
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          2  eventually somebody is going to ask them how many

          3  thousand dollar tickets they actually issued, and

          4  then we will actually know whether or not they are

          5  actually enforcing their own protocols and their own

          6  rules.

          7                 But I will do this though, I am going

          8  volunteer to you, Madam Chair, that if you give me a

          9  summons book and allow me to go out into the private

         10  hospitals and the City hospitals and allow me to

         11  issue summonses for ever single ambulance that

         12  passes by hospitals in order to steer their patients

         13  back to their own hospital; or to every City

         14  hospital that gets an indigent patient that was

         15  passed by three other hospitals because they did not

         16  want to stop there, I will share the fees, okay,

         17  with the City, and I guarantee you it would be a lot

         18  more than what the Fire Department does.  I do not

         19  think, I do not really understand what these people

         20  are doing.  They do not understand what we are

         21  trying to do here, we know they have not been doing

         22  the job.  And the purpose of this bill is actually

         23  to make sure that they understand that we expect

         24  them to do the job, and when they do not do the job,

         25  they are fined.
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          2                 In addition, I find it quite

          3  interesting in regard to the personnel that are

          4  involved with the private ambulances. The hiring

          5  policies for these companies and hospitals are

          6  really quite strange.  See, when you get terminated

          7  by the Fire Department, you get hired by them.  So

          8  it is not like they did not know, they did know.

          9  Then when our supposed hospital EMS supervision goes

         10  around, they notice that that is the same guy that

         11  was wearing a Fire Department Uniform a couple of

         12  weeks ago, and now he is working for some other

         13  ambulance company.  So we know that their hiring

         14  policies are really quite questionable, and they

         15  really need to look into it.

         16                 The thing that also concerns me,

         17  which I think, and it was just mentioned, it is

         18  about the strangle hold on the City Hospitals.  We

         19  know that the prior Administration was basically

         20  trying to eliminate City hospitals, they tried to

         21  sell Coney Island Hospital, as an example, they

         22  called it a lease, a lease meaning lease and get rid

         23  of it.  What they are trying to do is reduce the

         24  patient census so that these City hospitals all of a

         25  sudden become burdensome and they do not start to
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          2  show any revenue, or they show a decrease in their

          3  revenue, and then they will be back in here trying

          4  to convince people that we should eliminate these

          5  hospitals, and that is the purpose of privatizing

          6  EMS.  EMS people have been making sure that whoever

          7  is sick or injured they go to the nearest available

          8  health care facility.  Not whether they have

          9  insurance or they do not have insurance.  That is

         10  not the same thing that is going on with the private

         11  ambulances.

         12                 And the other issue is fire

         13  suppression.  Every single engine company that is

         14  waiting for a private ambulance to arrive, because

         15  it is not the kind of call that they want to go to,

         16  is taking away both from their fire suppression

         17  availability, and also, to take care of some other

         18  ill citizen, because they can only answer one call

         19  at a time.  So what they have done is, that they

         20  have destroyed our availability by allowing them

         21  into the system, which is the hidden agenda also.

         22  And I really think that Intro. 110 is an excellent

         23  idea, but also it needs to be, after we give the

         24  Commissioner the right to issue the fines, if he

         25  does not do it, you get back in touch with me and I
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          2  will start issuing the fines for you, okay?

          3                 In regard to Intro. 187, in my

          4  support memo, the Council's oversight is necessary

          5  to ensure that response time to emergency incidents

          6  do not become politicized.  Under the

          7  Commissionership (sic) of Howard Safir, emergency

          8  response times were made available only in the MMR.

          9  Prior to that, it was available to the City Council

         10  on a regular basis as their needs so indicated.  The

         11  result was that the response time was distorted,

         12  false, incomplete, misleading information was

         13  continually provided to the City Council.

         14                 Intro. 187 will allow the City

         15  Council to take back its oversight function of the

         16  Mayoral agencies forcing the Fire Department to be

         17  held accountable for response protocol.  Intro. 187

         18  is also necessary because it will divide emergency

         19  responses by response time and reporting source.  In

         20  the past, the Mayor's Management Report did not

         21  indicate whether calls for emergency assistance was

         22  received by telephone or from fire alarm boxes. That

         23  is in the past Administration, prior to that, every

         24  single emergency call was broken down, not only by

         25  whether it came from 911, but when it came from a 7-

                                                            86

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2  digit telephone number, whether it came from a

          3  private alarm company, it was completely broken

          4  down. As soon as the Administration came in, they

          5  intentionally gave false statistics to make the fire

          6  alarm boxes, and I do not know if you remember the

          7  big lie that kept going around, how they were called

          8  false alarm boxes.  Well, lo and behold, when we

          9  finally got the accountability, they were not really

         10  false alarm boxes, okay? We have more false alarms

         11  by telephone than we ever did by fire alarm boxes.

         12  So this information is extremely important to all of

         13  us so that we know, basically, what is going on.

         14                 This legislation will also allow the

         15  Fire Department to develop response policies that

         16  will ensure adequate fire and emergency medical

         17  coverage to areas with the greatest need.  That is

         18  why we want to do it by community board, by district

         19  areas, however that we want to do it.  By requesting

         20  quarterly reports listing types of incidents and

         21  response times on both a city- wide and a borough-

         22  by- borough basis, we will be able to develop

         23  appropriate policies that recognize the diverse

         24  needs of various communities of our City while

         25  ensuring that our community is not endangered for
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          2  political gain.

          3                 So basically, I survived the fire

          4  alarm box situation, and you know that we still have

          5  quite a few fire alarm boxes that are out there,

          6  that look like fire alarm boxes, but they are empty.

          7    It would really be interesting, okay, now that we

          8  can catch our breath, to go back out and see those

          9  communities that do not have the high phone density

         10  that we are quite aware of, how important those

         11  boxes seriously are.  And to start thinking about

         12  reinstalling the fire alarm boxes so that those

         13  people will have the same availability to emergency

         14  services as the people that have three telephones

         15  and fax machines in their houses.  I mean this is a

         16  very important part that needs to be done in the

         17  City of New York.

         18                 In addition, I do not really think

         19  they look very good, I do not think that little red

         20  things sticking out of the corners in the City of

         21  New York, that we have to move.  A lot of people do

         22  not know, but we have moved those posts so we could

         23  do the sidewalk cuts and reinstalled them without

         24  the box.  Okay, because the cable system is in that

         25  post, and we cannot just eliminate it, so we have to
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          2  keep it there, but we move it.  But they refuse to

          3  go ahead and reactivate those boxes, even though it

          4  is a cost, it really would not cost anything, other

          5  than to reinstall them.  The boxes are available,

          6  and we should be able to just put them back into

          7  service, and also provide the necessary service.

          8                 In regard to Intro. 132, to me, it is

          9  absolutely mind boggling that, if this was a private

         10  entity, we would all be fired.  I mean, it is as

         11  simple as that, I mean, if my boss came to me and

         12  said, we had 1.4 million EMS incidents last year,

         13  and we only collected 21 percent of the revenue, we

         14  would be looking for where the nearest unemployment

         15  office is.  But they continue to do that and find

         16  excuses and reasons why somebody cannot come on

         17  board to do it sooner.  I would think that in a

         18  scale of one to ten, when we are talking about a

         19  City that has some serious financial crisis, that

         20  that would be number one on the list, or at least,

         21  number two, to try to get as much revenue, in

         22  particularly, when our biggest problem is not

         23  providing the services, it is providing the bills to

         24  the proper agencies.  Most of the fees come from

         25  governmental agencies.  They come from the federal,
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          2  the state, and you know, that type stuff, and they

          3  still do not get the billing, it is really

          4  confusing.

          5                 So I support all three of these

          6  Intros., and I do appreciate the time, and I am

          7  willing to answer any questions that you may have.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  I would like to

         10  just ask, and you know whoever this is most

         11  appropriate to, out of a concern for just how EMS is

         12  operating right now, and related to our ability to

         13  prevent steering and billing.

         14                 Can you give us an indication of what

         15  the deployment strategy is from FDNY perspective?

         16  Do we have protected zones affiliated with municipal

         17  hospital areas where FDNYEMS are given their tours,

         18  or, you know, how exactly is that done?

         19                 MR. UNGAR:  Well, at this point it is

         20  a hodge podge, there is no, what we call, protected

         21  zones.  The City has been out trying to convince

         22  every hospital in the City to field the ambulances.

         23  I mean, they are aggressively out there saying, we

         24  want to privatize EMS, and we want you to put

         25  ambulances in the street.
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          2                 In one case in Brooklyn, they

          3  actually told the hospital, if you do not field

          4  another ambulance, we are going to put units in your

          5  neighborhood and basically deprive you of the

          6  revenue from the ambulances you have.  I mean, they

          7  actually, we have been informed that they actually

          8  muscled Brooklyn Hospital. So the, it is a real

          9  hodge podge.  So there is no, the standard for

         10  deployment is wherever they can get a private

         11  ambulance, they are putting it there, and it does

         12  not matter whether it is your neighborhood, my

         13  neighborhood, you know, Councilman Comrie's

         14  neighborhood, just if they can convince a private

         15  ambulance to go there, that ambulance is going.  And

         16  wherever that private ambulance goes, your Fire

         17  Department ambulance is being removed from your

         18  neighborhood, and that is that.

         19                 So down like where Councilman Comrie

         20  is, I would be surprised if he sees a whole of Fire

         21  Department ambulances in his community any more,

         22  because he is out there towards the East end of the

         23  Borough, where not only have they given it away, but

         24  they gave it away to a hospital who is not even here

         25  and does not pay taxes at all in our City or employ
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          2  people here, it is out in Long Island.

          3                 And in Councilman Monserrate's

          4  District, they have been pushing to add vehicles to

          5  Saint John's Hospital, which runs up into his

          6  territory.

          7                 So every district in the City where

          8  there is money to be made, there are private

          9  ambulances, and there is no way to tell until one

         10  shows up at your door.

         11                 The other thing is we are not in a

         12  static, what we call static deployment.  Fire houses

         13  are located in locations, and in the fire side of

         14  the house, nothing moves in the Fire Department

         15  unless the guy sitting on my right, Mr. Rosenzweig's

         16  people tell it to move.  And that is what we call

         17  static deployment, they are in fixed locations, and

         18  they stay there until a dispatcher says, Engine

         19  Company or Ladder Company go to a specific place.

         20                 EMS is in the street, that is a

         21  different kind of deployment, it is more like PD.

         22  The ambulances are basically out in the street

         23  during the whole tour.  And based on, and they have

         24  a territory, but the territory is not in violate,

         25  because if they pick up a patient in their
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          2  territory, now they are in a hospital, which is out

          3  of their territory.  They are on the way back to

          4  their territory and a call comes in somewhere in the

          5  middle, they may be told go here by the dispatcher,

          6  because they happen to be on the way back, and you

          7  know, they may be crossing 15 minutes worth of

          8  territory going back to their territory and they

          9  will be diverted somewhere else.

         10                 Because of that, we cannot say it is

         11  an absolute box in which this ambulance will live.

         12  Also, we shift our ambulances slightly in accordance

         13  with needs.  If we have a number of units that are

         14  tied up in a multi casualty incident, like a major

         15  fire or a building collapse, or even a major

         16  accident on the Van Wyck or the Belt Parkway, we may

         17  need to move units closer to that area, because the

         18  immediate units are tied up, but we still want to

         19  keep our response time down.

         20                 So in terms, we sort of shift

         21  everybody over just a little bit.  And this system

         22  works for EMS, you know, that is why years ago,

         23  before you all arrived on the scene, although, there

         24  was a Councilwoman Clarke at the time, and they said

         25  to the EMS, as in the merger discussion, we are
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          2  going to build 48 EMS ambulance stations and you are

          3  going to have a big screen TV and a weight room, and

          4  all this kind of stuff.  We said, hey, that is

          5  really nice, and by the way, we would still like to

          6  have that, okay.  But the fact is, we told them we

          7  are never going to be in there, so what are we

          8  talking about.  We are a mobile deployment force

          9  similar to the police, rather than the static

         10  deployment force similar to fire.  So you do not

         11  know who is going to show up in any neighborhood.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Is there a way

         13  that you all have assessed that creates, I guess,

         14  the deployment strategy that ensures to a certain

         15  degree that we have EMS, FDNYEMS deployed in a way

         16  in which they would be able to respond and make sure

         17  that our municipals (sic) are not being drained

         18  away?  I mean, I know that seems kind of, you know,

         19  kind of contrive, but based on what you said it

         20  seems as though, you know, that that is inevitable

         21  given the way that the system is set up right now.

         22                 MR. UNGAR:  Well, Council member, I

         23  point out that, you know, a couple of years ago the

         24  argument was that they were going into all of the

         25  fully insured neighborhoods and taking them over and
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          2  redeploying the Fire Department ambulances to the

          3  uninsured neighborhoods.  Which in some

          4  neighborhoods that became a benefit, because

          5  suddenly you were flooded with Fire Department

          6  ambulances, who did not really care whether you had

          7  insurance or you do not.  However, that has changed,

          8  because when we looked at the proposed cuts, the 75

          9  tours that the Department originally was looking at,

         10  they were privatizing 149th Street and the Grand

         11  Concourse in the South Bronx, where nobody has

         12  insurance.  So, but Medicaid pays, Medicare pays for

         13  elders, and so we saw a whole shift now where there

         14  is no way for us, I mean, we cannot not ensure

         15  anybody of anything when you see that it used to be

         16  you can count on them to privatize all, there were

         17  like no Fire Department ambulances in Eastern Queens

         18  any more.  There are a couple floating around, but

         19  for the most part they gave them all away because it

         20  is highly insurable, and we gave up millions of

         21  dollars of revenue in Council Member Comrie's

         22  District, in Councilman Avella's District, where I

         23  live, we gave it all away.

         24                 And we sent those ambulances to the

         25  South Bronx.  We literally sent them across the
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          2  bridge to the Bronx, and we sent some units into

          3  Brooklyn.  And then we get an operations order that

          4  privatizes a whole bunch of ambulances around the

          5  hub in the South Bronx, so everybody is, you know,

          6  unemployment is high and wages are low, and

          7  insurance is non- existent.

          8                 So the answer is, now, nobody is

          9  safe.  And we wonder at what point they are going to

         10  give away so much of the system that you are going

         11  to have to, you, the City Council, are going to have

         12  to essentially plead your case to private companies

         13  that are not under your jurisdiction, or you are not

         14  going to get any service.  You are going to get

         15  muscled by the private sector, because they are

         16  going to control life and death in your

         17  neighborhood.  And we think that you prefer to have

         18  the Fire Department, where we do not care about the

         19  money, although, we generate a lot of it, when you

         20  let us.  But our only mission in the fire service,

         21  firefighters, EMTs, Paramedics is to save lives.

         22  Firemen do not ask you if you have fire insurance

         23  when they come to your door.  We do not, of course,

         24  we want to know if you have Medicare or Medicaid,

         25  but we do not look to move you, you know, to some
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          2  bad place because you are not insured, and take you

          3  to one particular hospital because you are.  That is

          4  why you want the Fire Department, you are going to

          5  get the life- saving service without the baloney,

          6  but we cannot protect anybody's neighborhood.

          7                 And the Fire Department is full of

          8  nonsense when they come to Council members sometimes

          9  and they are going to cut a little deal, like, you

         10  know, you vote with us and we will make sure you are

         11  covered.  Yes, for how many, for how long?  Only

         12  until they can get a private company or a hospital

         13  that says, you know what, we will put another

         14  ambulance out, we will put it out in Councilwoman

         15  Clarke's District, no problem, we got it covered.

         16  Your Fire Department ambulance, gone.

         17                 And now we are into the issue of

         18  eliminations, because they have flooded the system

         19  to the point where instead of just moving them to

         20  another Borough, they are now talking about just

         21  cutting the tours out.  And our response time, when

         22  you get the reports under this new law, you are

         23  going to see the EMS response time is still not

         24  where it should be, and they are still cutting

         25  tours.
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          2                 So I hope I answered your question.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Yes, you did.

          4  Council Member Comrie, do you have a question,

          5  comment?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair. Just a short question, because I came

          8  late to the meeting, I am sorry.  But I am very

          9  concerned about these matters, and Mr. Ungar said,

         10  in my district it has been practically, entirely

         11  privatized by Jamaica Hospital, Mary Immaculate

         12  Hospital, and of course, Long Island Jewish

         13  Hospital.  And I just have a question, and since I

         14  did come late and I did not hear the Fire Department

         15  report, with Intro. 187, and it requires the

         16  operational time analysis, are they looking at the

         17  private companies response times, and are they

         18  folding that into the old MMR, or how was that done

         19  in the old version?

         20                 MR. UNGAR:  In the Giuliani era

         21  version, everybody was folded into one response time

         22  and they took an average, which also included the

         23  CFRD engine companies.  That way they could show

         24  that instead of a seven- minute or an eight- minute

         25  EMS response time, you were getting somebody from,
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          2  either the Fire Department was at your door in four

          3  minutes, regardless of who it was.  The issue there,

          4  Council member, is that by breaking it out for you,

          5  you will be able to sit in this room and say, okay,

          6  well, I was able to get a fire engine to respond in

          7  four minutes, well, actually, in your district there

          8  are some areas where it is a little longer, just

          9  because of the distances they have to travel. But I

         10  am not getting an actual ambulance to the seen for

         11  nine minutes, what is up with that, and who is

         12  accountable?

         13                 And I point out to you that by City

         14  Charter mandate the Fire Department must come in

         15  here and explain themselves to you, periodically.

         16  And there are rules, you know, you have your

         17  oversight hearings, you have your annual budget

         18  hearings, and they must sit in this chair no matter

         19  who they send, whether it is the Commissioner, or

         20  what I call it, designated flunky to take the hit.

         21  But they send somebody over here, and they have to.

         22  Mary Immaculate does not, not questioning their

         23  ability as a hospital, but you cannot put them in

         24  this chair, you would have to subpoena them.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.
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          2                 MR. UNGAR:  And I am not sure you

          3  could, because I am not sure that the Charter

          4  actually let's you do that.  Okay. The Fire

          5  Department has to explain itself.  Your district,

          6  you cannot get straight answers on ambulance service

          7  because we are not providing it to you.  And the

          8  people who are mandated to come in here and explain

          9  themselves can only cover for the private companies

         10  or the private hospitals.  But the City Charter does

         11  not require Mary Immaculate or any CMC hospital, or

         12  North Shore, or anybody else to sit in this chair

         13  and be questioned the way that you question our

         14  Department.

         15                 That is something to keep in mind

         16  when you are looking at these privates, because they

         17  are operating not only outside our system, they are

         18  operating outside your system.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I am glad you

         20  highlighted that point I wanted you to make.  And

         21  also, that only resolves my effort to want to make

         22  Intro. 187 as comprehensive as possible, to make

         23  sure that we, at least, we could find out what their

         24  response time is on the private end to our

         25  community, and make the Fire Department do whatever
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          2  is necessary to have the monitoring done, the

          3  inspections done, or whoever is providing service to

          4  City residents.

          5                 I just want to appreciate everything

          6  that you gentlemen are doing to highlight this

          7  information and keeping us informed so that we could

          8  press things in whatever venue we can to keep this

          9  issue in front of the City.

         10                 Also, I just want to say on behalf of

         11  the members that are not here, because I know

         12  Council Member Sanders had a couple of things that

         13  he had to do in his district today, but he wanted me

         14  to let you know that he is working hard to try and

         15  make sure that whatever we do on this bill is done

         16  as comprehensively as possible, because in his area

         17  also, he has a problem with long response times and

         18  private services.  And he does not really have that

         19  ability, or he does not have a real HHC hospital in

         20  his district, so he has a real problem.

         21                 MR. UNGAR:  Yes, Sir.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Also, just on

         23  the Resolution 132, regarding the billing practices.

         24    I appreciate the testimony that you had today on

         25  behalf of that, I think that will help the Committee
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          2  quickly move forward and vote this out, and move

          3  this to the point where we can make sure that we are

          4  gaining the revenues that we have earned in the City

          5  to prevent the continued dissolution of the HHC

          6  service and the EMTs.

          7                 And you have brought up another

          8  point, during the questioning, regarding the fact

          9  that failed EMTs are now going into these private

         10  services.  And I think that is another opportunity

         11  for this Committee to look into on how we can either

         12  mandate who comes into the City, and what kind of

         13  minimum requirements are necessary in order to

         14  service a population.

         15                 So, I happen to know people that are

         16  willing and have a high desire to become EMTs, and

         17  the process to become one has gotten more difficult.

         18    So even if you want to be a New York City EMT, we

         19  need to look at how we can make that happen in a,

         20  maybe do some additional training or pre- training

         21  so that we can get more persons into the system.

         22  And that would also probably help with the desire

         23  and the keeping the rates and the ranks high. And

         24  also the more diversity within the entire City of

         25  people that would like to serve.
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          2                 MR. UNGAR:  Thank you, Sir.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Gentlemen, I

          4  would like to thank you for your testimony here

          5  today.  And call our next panel.

          6                 MR. UNGAR:  Madam Chair, if I may for

          7  one moment as a courtesy?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Sure.

          9                 MR. UNGAR:  We have a new colleague,

         10  who, uh oh, he was in the room before.  I was going

         11  to introduce Jim Sleven, the new Vice- President of

         12  the Uniformed Firefighters Association, but I think

         13  he went out of the room.  So, I apologize.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Well, we

         15  acknowledge his presence here today.

         16                 I would like to call Gloria B. Thomas

         17  from the Council Community Advisory Board of HHC,

         18  and Doris Varlese, Associate General Counsel of the

         19  Greater New York Hospital Association.  Okay, that

         20  is fine, who else do we have here?  Yes, Judy, why

         21  don't you, Ms. Wessler, would you come up?  And

         22  then, Ms. Varlese, you can go following this panel,

         23  thank you.

         24                 And just so that everyone knows, we

         25  are running a bit behind in time.  There is a
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          2  hearing scheduled for this room very shortly, so if

          3  you could, you know, be very concise with your

          4  points, that would be great.

          5                 MS. THOMAS:  Good afternoon.  My name

          6  is Gloria Thomas, and I am the Chair of Harlem's

          7  Hospital Community Advisory Board, but today I am

          8  representing the Council of CABs.

          9                 Two issues, right now, Harlem

         10  Hospital has had a whole tour from its service of

         11  EMS, and we find that there is a 40 percent

         12  reduction in the number of people that are being

         13  sent to Harlem Hospital.  The number of patients

         14  have not decreased, because what is happening is we

         15  are going back to the old days where people are

         16  taking taxi cabs in order to get to Harlem Hospital,

         17  so that becomes the ultimate private ambulance when

         18  you cannot get them to come.

         19                 Bellevue is also in the process of

         20  trying to have the State come down and look at

         21  steering that is taking place where people are being

         22  sent to the other facilities.  The biggest problem,

         23  I think, with Bellevue is because it is a strip of

         24  hospitals, they can justify it by taking them next

         25  door because they are saying that they are in the
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          2  same zip code.

          3                 And to be succinct with everything, I

          4  think, when we look at the former Comptroller's

          5  report, Alan Hevesi's report on what was happening

          6  with private ambulance services, it just reiterates

          7  the fact that we do need an EMS, and maybe the EMS

          8  does not need to be part of the Fire Department,

          9  since the Fire Department is not willing to embrace

         10  it.

         11                 And in closing, I just wanted to say

         12  that having had personal experience with an

         13  ambulance coming to pick me up, I had to justify to

         14  them why I wanted to go to an HHC facility.  And

         15  they kept saying we can take you to Columbia

         16  Presbyterian, and I have to explain to them why I

         17  want to go to Harlem Hospital.  And I think that is

         18  indicative of what happens.  And, of course, when it

         19  is the private ambulance and they down grade HHC

         20  facilities, it turns more people off.

         21                 And in closing, what happens is the

         22  Council of CABs feels as though, as the Fire

         23  Department representatives, the union

         24  representatives just said, that this is a way of

         25  privatizing Health and Hospital Corporation through
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          2  the side door by taking away the ambulances that

          3  deliver the high fee people to the facility.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MS. WESSLER:  Thank you.  My name is

          6  Judy Wessler, and I am the Director of the

          7  Commission on the Public's Health System.  And you

          8  can almost forget about the first paragraph that I

          9  wrote.  We just talked about suspicions about what

         10  the Mayor was doing, but the union representatives

         11  made me feel I am no longer paranoid, and it is no

         12  longer suspicions that this is an actual move to

         13  privatize the ambulance system in New York City.

         14  And we will do whatever we need to do to support the

         15  City Council in making sure that that does not

         16  happen, and mobilizing people to make sure that that

         17  does not happen.  So like I needed to change the

         18  paragraph, because I have not heard what they are

         19  doing in terms of going and trying to force private

         20  hospitals to take these ambulances.

         21                 You have heard about the former

         22  Comptroller's report, Alan Hevesi's report,

         23  actually, the actual author of it in the audience

         24  listening, Dr. Barry Skewer (phonetic), and he will

         25  probably be embarrassed that I am calling his name
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          2  out.  But it stands as a masterpiece of the kind of

          3  work that the Fire Department should have been

          4  doing, and, of course, never did.

          5                 But let me go into my testimony.  The

          6  Mayor's move is poor public health policy.  A move

          7  surprising from a Mayor who prides himself on his

          8  connection to the Public Health School at Johns

          9  Hopkins, which is actually named after him.  A move

         10  from a Mayor, who in his appearance at the

         11  nonpartisan Mayoral Public Health Forum in August

         12  2001, talked about providing additional funding for

         13  the public health and hospital sector.  Whereas,

         14  what he is doing is taking money out.

         15                 And I want to go into some of the

         16  reasons why we believe this is poor public health

         17  policy.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Judy, you know,

         19  if you could just give us some bullets, because we

         20  are really running behind time for another hearing.

         21                 MS. WESSLER:  Sure, sure.  Okay.  The

         22  former Mayor moved EMS into the Fire Department as a

         23  privatization drive. Unfortunately, this Mayor is

         24  continuing that not so fine tradition.

         25                 I mentioned the Comptroller's report
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          2  and the losses to HHC.

          3                 Voluntary hospitals, and this is

          4  public health policy issue, voluntary hospitals are

          5  using their private ambulances as part of their

          6  competitive mode for market share of patients rather

          7  than providing a badly needed public service.  And

          8  that is something that we want the City Council to

          9  think about and focus on because that is very

         10  frightening.

         11                 And the ambulances are used to divert

         12  patients not only from public hospitals, but also

         13  from other competing voluntary hospitals, and that

         14  is, again, very bad public policy.

         15                 We have seen documentation of at

         16  least 10 patients that were brought to Bellevue,

         17  where the private ambulances on their ambulance call

         18  report said that the patients asked to be taken to

         19  Bellevue, except that the patients were comatose and

         20  could not ask for anything.  So you know there is

         21  that level of, I do not want to say lying,

         22  obscuration of the facts.

         23                 We know that the EMS personnel are

         24  better trained, we have heard that.

         25                 I just want to talk about something
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          2  that perhaps we can do best, and that is, last year

          3  the Commission, along with the New York Lawyers

          4  Public Interest, received funding from the Common

          5  Wealth Fund to do a manual and provide training for

          6  community organizations on how to help the

          7  uninsured.  And in the first chapter in the manual

          8  is about emergency ambulance service and what people

          9  can expect.  And I want to emphasize that, and I

         10  just did a training session this morning, that is

         11  why I, unfortunately, missed the Fire Department, I

         12  asked the people around the room to let me know if

         13  any of them had ever heard of the 10- minute rule?

         14  No hands went up.  I asked if they knew their rights

         15  in terms of which, you know, hospital they should be

         16  taken to?  And these are community organizations

         17  that have a level of sophistication from all over

         18  the City, and none of them knew what the rights are.

         19    We have provided training for about 500 community

         20  organizations on these issues, and about 98 percent

         21  have no idea of what the requirements are.

         22                 So that the Fire Department relying

         23  on consumer complaints, when people do not even know

         24  what their rights are, is very fallacious basis for

         25  following up on any concerns.

                                                            109

          1  FIRE AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES

          2                 The other point about from the

          3  training is, you know, this is not a simple issue,

          4  because it is also a cost out- of pocket to

          5  patients, particularly those who were uninsured.

          6  And the Fire Department ambulance is about $400

          7  dollars they charge.  My understanding is that the

          8  private ambulances charge up to about $800 dollars.

          9  And if a person is not hospitalized, they might have

         10  to pay for that ambulance service out- of- pocket.

         11  So it could be up to twice the cost.  And we know

         12  that people cannot afford that. And I used to tell

         13  people to ignore the bills, if they could not pay

         14  it, but now people are getting contacted by

         15  collection agencies.  And the collection agencies

         16  are harassing them and going after them, so I am not

         17  telling them to ignore the bills anymore. So that is

         18  another very serious issue, and there is kind of a

         19  difference between what EMS and the private hospital

         20  ambulances do, that, you know, I would like to bring

         21  to your attention and raise concerns about.

         22                 We strongly support Resolution No.

         23  132, and you know, hope that you will go forward

         24  with that.

         25                 We had some concerns about Intro.
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          2  110, because support it in principle, but basically,

          3  it is our understanding that the Fire Department

          4  already has those powers in listening to people and

          5  hearing that maybe this will give you, the Council,

          6  more ability to say to the Fire Department, you

          7  better do this, then maybe we would support the

          8  bill.  And I would like to look at it more detail,

          9  and maybe make recommendations about tightening up

         10  some pieces of it that affect patients that we would

         11  be concerned about.

         12                 We want to raise a question about,

         13  you know, the Hevesi Report was done.  Did the Fire

         14  Department follow- up, you know, did they ever look

         15  at this report, was there ever a response that said,

         16  this is something we are concerned about?  And you

         17  know, we would like to ask you to ask that question,

         18  if you have not. And you know, did they take any

         19  steps differently after that?  And we do not think

         20  that they did.

         21                 The final question is really, should

         22  emergency medical services be in the Fire

         23  Department?  And I think there are a lots of reasons

         24  why we would answer that, perhaps they should not

         25  be.  And we would like to ask the Council to look at
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          2  that question again, and see if there is not,

          3  perhaps, some better place for location of EMS.

          4                 Finally, in the MOU that was signed

          5  between the City, the City Council, Health and

          6  Hospital Corporation, there actually were several

          7  reporting requirements that it is our sense were

          8  totally ignored.  If that is inaccurate, we would

          9  like to know that.  But Section 12(a), required an

         10  annual report to the Health and Hospital Corporation

         11  to the Fire Department, which presumably would then

         12  make it a public document for all of us, the

         13  Council, and you know, us concerned folks.  To my

         14  knowledge, that report has not been filed, it is

         15  certainly has not become a public document. So even

         16  what was required in the MOU has not necessarily

         17  been enforced, and we would ask you to take a look

         18  at that as well.  I have one copy of the manual with

         19  me, you can see the first chapter, if anybody wants

         20  more, we can make them available.  But, again, the

         21  community does not know that they have any rights in

         22  regards to ambulance and services.

         23                 Thank you.  I would be happy to

         24  answer any questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  I would like to
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          2  thank both of you women for bringing your

          3  perspectives to the issue of these Intros. And

          4  Resolutions today.  And we will certainly factor

          5  them in as we continue to move to address these

          6  pieces of legislation. Thank you.

          7                 I would like to call at this time,

          8  Ms. Doris Varlese, Associate General Counsel of the

          9  Greater New York Hospital Association.  And just

         10  state your name and affiliation?  Thank you.

         11                 MS. VARLESE:  I am Doris Varlese, and

         12  I am Associate General Counsel at the Greater New

         13  York Hospital Association. Thank you, Council

         14  members for the opportunity to appear before you

         15  today.

         16                 By way of introduction, Greater New

         17  York Hospital Association is a member organization

         18  of hospitals and nursing homes.  We have over 200

         19  members in the New York City area and surrounding

         20  communities, and our members include voluntary, as

         21  well as public institutions.

         22                 As you have heard before this

         23  morning, several Greater New York Hospital

         24  Association members operate ambulances in the New

         25  York City 911 system.  Our members now comprise a
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          2  significant percentage of the system of the tours

          3  that are operated on a daily basis in the 911

          4  system, which as you know, is run by the New York

          5  City Fire Department.  And we believe that our

          6  members provide a valuable community service by

          7  running these tours.

          8                 I take issue with the

          9  characterization of the system being a hodge podge

         10  of players.  We believe it is a very organized

         11  system under the responsibility of the Fire

         12  Department.  Our members follow the same rules and

         13  protocols as Fire Department ambulances do, and our

         14  members ensure that their hospital personnel that

         15  operate ambulances in the 911 system do abide by

         16  those protocols and are trained as the Fire

         17  Department personnel are, as well.

         18                 I also wanted to mention, I was not

         19  aware of the Fire Department forcing any hospitals

         20  to begin to operate units in the system.  It is

         21  totally on a voluntary basis, hospitals that are

         22  interested in operating units must get the necessary

         23  approvals from the State Department of Health, and

         24  then can run an ambulance service.  And they then

         25  work out through contractual agreements with the
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          2  Fire Department, issues such as where the units will

          3  be stationed, which is based on where their

          4  certificate of need from the State Department of

          5  Health allows them to operate.

          6                 We believe that there are already

          7  adequate remedies under the existing voluntary

          8  hospital contracts with the New York City Fire

          9  Department for violations of rules and protocols,

         10  and therefore, we are opposing Intro. No. 110.

         11                 The remedies that are involved under

         12  the contract include taking the unit off service.

         13  The Fire Department can immediately remove a unit

         14  from service, if it is continued operation would be

         15  unsafe or hazardous to the public or a patient. The

         16  ambulance has to remain out of service until the

         17  Fire Department reviews the situation, the hospital

         18  submits a corrective action plan to the Fire

         19  Department and the Fire Department accepts it.  And,

         20  indeed, the Fire Department has imposed those

         21  remedies on hospitals for violations of rules or

         22  protocols.

         23                 In addition, under the current

         24  contract, the Fire Department can terminate the

         25  contractual agreement for reasons that include
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          2  failure to comply with applicable laws, rules,

          3  regulation procedures, or protocols.

          4                 So, again, we believe that there are

          5  adequate remedies under the contracts for violations

          6  of rules or protocols.

          7                 We believe that the imposition of

          8  financial penalties for individual violations of

          9  rules or protocols could have a detrimental effect

         10  on the New York City 911 system.  As was mentioned

         11  before, in recent years response times have been

         12  decreased in the system, and that is as a result of

         13  more and more units being on the streets serving

         14  their community that results in decreased response

         15  times to individual 911 calls.  We believe if

         16  financial penalties are imposed, they could

         17  potentially be imposed for minor infractions that do

         18  not impact patient care.  For example, not filling

         19  out an ambulance call report appropriately, or not

         20  having the specific, for example, correct amount of

         21  bandages, even though the hospital is on their way

         22  to restock those items, or not having a, carrying a

         23  Paramedic card on that day.  So we believe imposing

         24  these financial penalties could have a detrimental

         25  impact. And, again, there are already adequate
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          2  remedies under the contract.

          3                 In addition, when there are patient

          4  complaints, as the Fire Department has indicated,

          5  the Fire Department investigates all patient

          6  complaints, works with the hospitals that operates

          7  units in the system to come up with a corrective

          8  action plan, so that going forward patient care

          9  benefits from the imposition of corrective actions.

         10  We believe that if financial penalties are imposed

         11  it will have an impact on the dialogue that needs to

         12  occur between the hospital and the Fire Department

         13  about the specific situation, and can become more

         14  adversarial than it should be in a situation where

         15  the party should be discussing how to enhance

         16  patient care going forward.

         17                 We also believe that since the New

         18  York State Department of Health is the entity that

         19  regulates ambulances, ambulance services and

         20  individual EMTs and Paramedics, that they are the

         21  body that should be imposing pursuant to New York

         22  State Legislation financial penalties.  The

         23  penalties with regard to violations of rules or

         24  protocols, we believe should be part of contractual

         25  agreements, and as I indicated are, and should not
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          2  be part of New York City legislation.  We believe

          3  that the State, pursuant to their authority to

          4  regulate ambulance services and individual

          5  Paramedics and EMTs, the State is the body that

          6  should be, if any one is imposing financial

          7  penalties, should be the one imposing financial

          8  penalties.  But, again, we do not believe that they

          9  are necessary.

         10                 I just wanted to mention a few other

         11  points that had been mentioned this morning.

         12                 One is with regard to security.  Our

         13  hospital personnel that operate ambulances are

         14  subject to background checks, the same way Fire

         15  Department employees are.  That includes a medical

         16  clearance, that includes driver's license background

         17  checks, that includes background checks for criminal

         18  convictions. In addition, our hospitals have

         19  security procedures.  These days everyone is very

         20  concerned about security, hospitals have been

         21  reviewing their own security procedures and

         22  discussing them with the Fire Department, but they

         23  do have security procedures to ensure that the

         24  personnel operating ambulances are authorized to do

         25  so. All hospital employees must carry their ID and
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          2  their Paramedic cards, and they, each unit must log

          3  on with the Fire Department before they start their

          4  tour of operation, and must indicate their shield

          5  number and other information that the Fire

          6  Department requires, so that it is clear that they

          7  are authorized to operate the ambulances.  In

          8  addition, hospitals have other security procedures

          9  that they utilize, for example, locking parking lots

         10  where vehicles are, allowing access to areas where

         11  the vehicles are by, for example, swipe cards, and

         12  many of them are monitored by video.  So, again, we

         13  believe that the security procedures are adequate.

         14                 So, in summary, we are opposed to

         15  this legislation. We believe that there are adequate

         16  remedies, and our members do follow the same

         17  protocols that Fire Department units follow.  And we

         18  believe that our members provide a valuable benefit

         19  to the system.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  I would like to

         22  thank you for your testimony, and ask, do you have

         23  it in written form, by any chance?

         24                 MS. VARLESE:  No, not at this point.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay, if at all
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          2  possible then you can assemble your notes into some

          3  written form and submit it to our Committee, that

          4  can be very helpful.

          5                 I want to just ask you a couple of

          6  questions.  We are really running behind time, and I

          7  would just like to get your response for our record.

          8    You stated that you believe that the State's

          9  regulation of voluntary ambulance is sufficient.

         10  Have you ever had a case within your purview of

         11  institutions where a contract has been pulled, to

         12  your knowledge?

         13                 MS. VARLESE:  My understanding is

         14  that the Fire Department has suspended, at least,

         15  one of our hospitals from service at some point.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  But not an

         17  actual contract pull?

         18                 MS. VARLESE:  I do not believe that

         19  contracts have been terminated, but they have, at

         20  least, been suspended.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay.  Is each

         22  of your institutions responsible for their own EMS

         23  training, or is there something that the Association

         24  does for all of the institutions that fall under its

         25  purview?
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          2                 MS. VARLESE:  Our institutions are

          3  responsible for their training, but they do it in

          4  conjunction with Fire Department Training Programs,

          5  as well as we often work with the Fire Department to

          6  sponsor educational programs for our members, so we

          7  do work with the Fire Department.  And many of our

          8  members operate EMS Training Institutes, at which

          9  Fire Department members attend, as well.  So it is

         10  all done in conjunction with the Fire Department.

         11  And, again, they are trained on exactly the same

         12  procedures.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  So can you state

         14  unequivocally that your security and training is

         15  completely congruent to the FDNY Security and

         16  Training Procedures?

         17                 MS. VARLESE:  Our security and

         18  training procedures are equivalent to the Fire

         19  Department training procedures.  In individual

         20  instances with regard to security, they might not be

         21  exactly the same, depending on how a hospital

         22  secures their ambulances or where it is, because it

         23  is usually secured on the hospital premises.  But

         24  they are at least equal to security procedures of

         25  the Fire Department.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  I am thinking

          3  more in terms of public safety, not the safety of

          4  the ambulance or facilities themselves, but - -

          5                 MS. VARLESE:  You are talking about

          6  personnel, for example?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Yes, exactly.

          8                 MS. VARLESE:  Yes, absolutely.  They

          9  must carry ID cards, and, you know, they must follow

         10  all the other Fire Department.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  And you have

         12  done background checks and all of that information

         13  for each of the personnel that is aboard a tour is

         14  something that is easily and readily accessible and

         15  submitted to the Fire Department?

         16                 MS. VARLESE:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay.

         18                 MS. VARLESE:  Under the contract,

         19  hospitals are required to do background checks, and

         20  they must agree to that under the contract, and they

         21  do.  And obviously, it is in hospitals interest to

         22  make sure that the personnel operating their

         23  ambulances will do so in a safe way, and are, you

         24  know, really have the appropriate State

         25  authorization to do so.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  And do you know

          3  how frequently that information is submitted to the

          4  FDNY?

          5                 MS. VARLESE:  My understanding is it

          6  must be submitted prior to employment, before they

          7  can then log onto the Fire Department system.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay.  And how

          9  frequently are the contracts let to the various

         10  institutions, are they renewed on an annual basis,

         11  or once you get a contract, you have a contract for

         12  life, how is that done?

         13                 MS. VARLESE:  They are for a period

         14  of two years, and, again, as I mentioned, they can

         15  be terminated by the Fire Department for failure to

         16  follow procedures and protocols.  So it is not an

         17  automatic, once you get a contract it does not mean

         18  that the hospital will have a contract for life or

         19  anything.  And the Fire Department is constantly

         20  reviewing hospital performances, making sure that

         21  response times are constantly improving, they review

         22  all of our units monthly, provide reports to our

         23  institutions on a monthly basis, so that our

         24  institutions can monitor their own performance, and

         25  there is constant dialogue with our members as to
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          2  the performance of their units.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  Okay, thank you

          4  so much for your testimony here today.  We

          5  appreciate it, and we will utilize it during our

          6  deliberations of the legislation before us.  Thank

          7  you very much.

          8                 MS. VARLESE:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON CLARKE:  We had a final

         10  person to actually give testimony today.  I am going

         11  to ask that Mr. Richard McAllan, if you could put

         12  your testimony in writing for us, that would be

         13  wonderful.  And I will speak with you, as well.  Oh,

         14  your testimony is here.  We will have your testimony

         15  read into the record.  Unfortunately, we have run

         16  out of time for today's hearing.  I am sure that is

         17  the case, if it is possible for us to get your

         18  response in writing, so that we can have it read

         19  into the record and dealt with as we do our analysis

         20  of the legislation before us, because this hearing

         21  is really on three particular pieces of legislation,

         22  we would appreciate that.  But at this point, we are

         23  really infringing on the next hearing that is to

         24  take place here.  So, I would appreciate your

         25  indulgence in this matter. Thank you very much.
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          2                 I call this hearing adjourned.

          3                 (Hearing adjourned at 1:19 p.m.)

          4                 (The following testimony was read

          5  into the record.)

          6

          7  Testimony of:

          8  Richard McAllan

          9  Senior NYC EMS Paramedic

         10  P.O. Box 478

         11  Bronx, New York 10463

         12

         13                 It is my pleasure to testify before

         14  this Committee once again.  Certainly, the City's

         15  severe budget crisis and what to do about it

         16  occupies the City's attention.  This budget crisis,

         17  in one form or the other, is sure to persist over

         18  the next four years. This is why it is all the more

         19  important for the City Council to more fully address

         20  the serious NYC EMS coverage facing all New Yorkers

         21  now.

         22                 EMS Response Time Bill:

         23                 I do wish to testify in support of

         24  the proposed EMS Response Time Bill.  Of course,

         25  everyone in this City would benefit, if the various
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          2  communities could find out accurate 911 ambulance

          3  response times for their area.  I do note that

          4  similar legislation was vetoed by Mayor Giuliani

          5  some years back because he did not want New Yorkers

          6  to know the truth about the so- called EMS/Fire

          7  merger.

          8                 Before the merger, the NYC Health and

          9  Hospital Corporation used to make this EMS response

         10  time information available on a Community Board

         11  basis.  The NYC EMS Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD)

         12  system has always generated a substantial number of

         13  managerial reports, including hour- by- hour reports

         14  that are available to the FDNY Administration on an

         15  almost real time basis. In fact, based on reports

         16  that I used to see when EMS was a part of HHC, the

         17  FDNY Administration probably has to blend the

         18  reports from their hopelessly outdated Starfire

         19  Dispatch system with the EMS CAD reports in order to

         20  give you the combined response time figures the City

         21  Council is now receiving.

         22                 The Council should also remember that

         23  many times a responding Fire engine will be

         24  cancelled enroute, if an ambulance arrives quickly

         25  at the scene.  The Engine might also cancel
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          2  downstairs when it encounters an ambulance that has

          3  arrived before it.  In these situations often the

          4  Fire Engine will not go upstairs to make patient

          5  contact and/or be properly relieved by the EMS unit.

          6    Therefore, these CFR response time figures may be

          7  somewhat skewed in situation where an EMS unit

          8  arrives quickly at the scene.

          9                 Ambulance Cross Street Locations:

         10                 One other point that bears careful

         11  consideration by the Council is the Fire

         12  Department's practice of churning NYC EMS units as a

         13  payoff to politically connected hospitals and the

         14  commercial ambulance operator MetroCare.  These

         15  political payoffs for choice cross street locations

         16  (CSL's) have never been worse under the Fire

         17  Department's politically compromised administration

         18  of NYC EMS.

         19                 Although many examples could be cited

         20  city- wide, I have been studying the effect that

         21  these political payoffs have had in the Bronx.  A

         22  lot of NYC EMS units were shifted away from the area

         23  serving St. Barnabas Hospital in the West Bronx when

         24  the Giuliani Administration forced through allowing

         25  MetroCare, a commercial ambulance company, to serve
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          2  that Hospital's surrounding area.  This was

          3  accomplished as a political payoff to MetroCare

          4  operator Stephen Zackheim, who was an important

          5  Giuliani for U.S. Senate supporter.  By quietly

          6  pressuring these non- union commercial ambulance

          7  employees to transport patients back to St. Barnabas

          8  on an overwhelming basis, MetroCare ambulances have

          9  substantially decreased the patient census at HHC's

         10  Lincoln Hospital to the south.  Now Bronx Lebanon,

         11  who is feeling the same patient steering heat, has

         12  added MetroCare units that will further hurt Lincoln

         13  Hospital's patient census.

         14                 A similar approach was utilized by

         15  the Fire Department Administration to destabilize

         16  FDNY units that were stationed in the other areas of

         17  the Bronx as well.  When Westchester Square Hospital

         18  fielded MetroCare units, they were rewarded by the

         19  FDNY Administration with choice CSL's that used to

         20  be covered by busy FDNY units.  For example, one

         21  such busy EMS EMT unit was removed from its CSL in

         22  the vicinity of the Cross Bronx Expressways and

         23  Castle Hill Ave., renamed and then redeployed to the

         24  quiet Throgs Neck area of the Bronx.  Needless to

         25  say, the redeployed EMS unit's call volume dropped
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          2  and FDNY then proposed cutting the same NYC EMS

          3  ambulance as non- productive in the budget that has

          4  just been adopted by the City Council.

          5                 These same FDNY ambulance CSL

          6  churning methods have also been used to reward

          7  Einstein and Montifiore Hospitals in the Bronx with

          8  choice CSL's  By giving these commercial ambulances

          9  the best CSL's the FDNY Administration has also

         10  reduced 911 patient transports to both Jacobi and

         11  North Central Bronx HHC Hospitals in the Bronx.

         12  Therefore, it is important that the City Council

         13  track changes to the EMS Ambulance Matrix so that it

         14  is not taken in by the FDNY track changes to the EMS

         15  Ambulance Matrix so that it is not taken in by the

         16  FDNY Administration's efforts to kill the Municipal

         17  ambulances that are under its direct control.

         18                 Patient Transport Data:

         19                 One area where the bill does not go

         20  far enough is in the area of where a patient is

         21  being transported to.  EMS CAD has always generated

         22  hospital destination reports that are broken down by

         23  Municipal ambulances and voluntary ambulances.  The

         24  FDNY Administration would not want to release these

         25  reports because they would confirm the allegations
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          2  or patient steering as these numbers did in the

          3  Hevesi Report on the same subject.  While patient

          4  steering may at times be subtle and difficult to

          5  prove, the June 2001 Hevesi Report contained ample

          6  proof that deliberate patient steering is routinely

          7  practiced by the voluntary ambulances operating in

          8  the 911 system of this City.  Once again, patient

          9  steering can often be accomplished merely by careful

         10  placement of voluntary hospital units at choice

         11  Cross Street Locations.

         12                 Therefore, in my view the Council

         13  should amend this bill to force the full hospital-

         14  by- hospital disclosure of patient destinations by

         15  the respective municipal and voluntary ambulance

         16  sectors when the other response time data is release

         17  by FDNY. While such a disclosure would not eliminate

         18  patient steering, it would go a long way to showing

         19  just how unbalanced the NYC EMS system currently is.

         20                 Civil Penalties Imposed By The Fire

         21  Commissioner:

         22                 While I reluctantly support the

         23  passage of this bill, I wish to go on the record as

         24  to why this bill is not likely to produce any

         25  desirable results in this skewed EMS system.  First
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          2  of all, the Fire Department has been the worst EMS

          3  Administration I have ever worked for.  Now I am not

          4  going to say that EMS/HHC was a perfect operation,

          5  but it was not as permeated with bad politics as

          6  this FDNY Administration is towards NYC EMS.  This

          7  FDNY Administration is carefully nurturing the

          8  spread of largely unsupervised commercial ambulances

          9  in the 911 system when, after the horrible events of

         10  9/11, the City Administration should be re creating

         11  NYC EMS as a third Emergency Service with primary

         12  responsibility for covering all the 911 EMS calls of

         13  this City.

         14                 So with the horrible politics at play

         15  in this situation, it is highly unlikely that the

         16  FDNY Administration will be looking too hard to

         17  penalized their political buddies in the voluntary

         18  hospital sectors.  Therefore, with all due respect

         19  to this bill's sponsors, this bill has little hope

         20  of improving the quality of EMS patient care in this

         21  City.  Rather, this bill tends to support the

         22  horrible voluntary/commercial ambulance theory that

         23  this FDNY Administration is trying other pass off to

         24  New Yorkers as good ambulance coverage.  For

         25  example, there have been reports that MetroCare
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          2  Ambulance has been caught at letting their employees

          3  sign on the EMS 911 system under false badge

          4  numbers.  A modest civil penalty is unlikely to

          5  correct such outrageous misconduct by this

          6  disreputable ambulance company.

          7                 Further, in 1999 the predecessor

          8  ambulance companies to MetroCare Ambulance were

          9  assessed for over $12 million dollars in proposed

         10  Medicare Ambulance Overpayment amount by HCFA.

         11  While I do not know the final outcome of these

         12  assessments, it seems obvious to me that the City

         13  Council should investigate MetroCare Ambulance's

         14  fitness to be in the NYC EMS 911 system in the he

         15  first place.

         16                 Ambulance Fee Schedules:

         17                 In the same vein, the prior and

         18  current FDNY Administrations have allowed this

         19  ambulance company to avoid filing Vendex

         20  Questionnaires by carefully constructing

         21  subcontracts that have allowed this disreputable

         22  ambulance company to escape the usual public

         23  disclosure requirements.  But the facts are plain,

         24  there is no free lunch when it comes to the

         25  provision of 911 ambulance services.  These so-
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          2  called voluntary hospital ambulances are easily

          3  billing the citizens of this City in excess of

          4  $100,000 annually in patient service bills.  As

          5  such, they should be complying the Vendex

          6  requirements.

          7                 I have urged the City Council before

          8  to regulate the ambulance fees that a 911 voluntary

          9  hospital ambulance provider can charge the citizens

         10  of this city.  This power is granted to all

         11  municipalities by the NYS General Municipal Law.  At

         12  the very least the City Council should have the Fire

         13  Commissioner collect information on 911 ambulance

         14  rates and see that these numbers are presented to

         15  the Council and the public.  This would be a good

         16  first step for the Council to take so that proper

         17  information can be presented to the NYC public.

         18                 NYC EMS Needs To Be Converted To An

         19  EMS Authority:

         20                 Your writer has testified recently

         21  before this Council that, in my view, the only way

         22  to correct the emergency preparedness and patient

         23  steering problems that currently plague NYC EMS was

         24  to re- create NYC EMS as an independent NYC EMS

         25  Authority with responsibility for handling all EMS
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          2  911 calls in this City.  Unfortunately, as

          3  information comes to light about significant Fire

          4  Department communications problems that were

          5  encountered at the WTC, it makes all the more

          6  apparent that the FDNY Administration is unqualified

          7  to operate NYC EMS.  The proper solution is to

          8  absorb all 911 ambulances in this City into a single

          9  professionally staffed NYC EMS Authority that

         10  provide all the patients of this City enhanced

         11  emergency medical protection in the future.

         12                 Finally, I wish to call the City

         13  Council's attention to a letter to the Editor of the

         14  New York Times that I recently submitted concerning

         15  the World Trade Center Disaster.  Among the points I

         16  make in the letter is the fact that the Fire

         17  Department Administration eliminated the NYC EMS

         18  Field Communications Unit which could have played a

         19  valuable role in enhancing radio communications on

         20  the day of the World Trade Center Disaster.  I

         21  respectfully call upon the City Council to restore

         22  the EMS Specialty Units forthwith.  I also call upon

         23  the Council to fully investigate the Fire

         24  Department's digital portable scandal that swept

         25  under the rug by the prior Administration.  I would
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          2  readily concede that this radio scandal now

          3  intersects with the horribly painful WTC Disaster.

          4  But such a FDNY radio procurement investigation is

          5  the only way to shed necessary light on the scandal

          6  so that these types of radio communications failure

          7  do not happen again in the future.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 1:19 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 11th day of July 2002.
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                                   ---------------------

         24                          PAT WTULICH
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          3
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          7

          8

          9            I, PAT WTULICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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         22                 -----------------------

                              PAT WTULICH
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